#### UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

#### FORM 10-Q

### $(Mark\ One) \\ {\boxtimes}\ QUARTERLY\ REPORT\ PURSUANT\ TO\ SECTION\ 13\ OR\ 15(d)\ OF\ THE\ SECURITIES\ EXCHANGE\ ACT\ OF\ 1934$

For the quarterly period ended: March 31, 2023

	OI .	
□ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT	T TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SEC	URITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the tra	nsition period from to	
	Commission File Number: 001-41038	
	STRAN & COMPANY, INC.	
(Ex	act name of registrant as specified in its charte	r)
Nevada		04-3297200
(State or other jurisdiction		(I.R.S. Employer
of incorporation)		Identification No.)
2 Heritage Drive, Suite 600, Quincy, MA		02171
(Address of principal executive offices)		(Zip Code)
	800-833-3309	
(Res	gistrant's telephone number, including area cod	le)
`	, , , , ,	,
dr.		
(Former	name or former address, if changed since last	report)
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:		
Tra 6 1 1	T. P. C. L.K.)	N 6 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Common Stock, par value \$0.0001 per share	Trading Symbol(s) STRN	Name of each exchange on which registered The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC
Warrants, each warrant exercisable for one share of	STRNW	The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC
Common Stock at an exercise price of \$4.81375	J. T.	110 10105/1Q 3000k Market 220
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all repemonths (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required		
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electhe preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the regist		
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large acceler company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer,"	ated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer," "smaller reporting company" and " $\epsilon$	ted filer, a smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth emerging growth company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
Large accelerated filer □		Accelerated filer □
Non-accelerated filer ⊠		Smaller reporting company
		Emerging growth company
If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the re accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Ex		ansition period for complying with any new or revised financia
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company	(as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act)	). Yes □ No ⊠
As of May 15, 2023, there were 18,420,264 shares of the registrar	t's common stock outstanding.	

#### STRAN & COMPANY, INC.

#### Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q Period Ended March 31, 2023

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PART I	
	FINANCIAL INFORMATION	
Item 1.	<u>Financial Statements</u>	1
Item 2.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	21
Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	43
Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	43
	PART II	
	OTHER INFORMATION	
Item 1.	<u>Legal Proceedings</u>	44
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	44
Item 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	44
Item 3.	Defaults Upon Senior Securities	44
Item 4.	Mine Safety Disclosures	44
Item 5.	Other Information	44
Item 6.	Exhibits	45

#### PART I

#### **FINANCIAL INFORMATION**

#### ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

## STRAN & COMPANY, INC. UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	Page
Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2023 (unaudited) and December 31, 2022	2
Statements of Earnings (Loss) and Retained Earnings for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 (unaudited)	3
Statement of Stockholders' Equity for Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 (unaudited)	4
Statements of Cash Flows for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 (unaudited)	5
Notes to Financial Statements (unaudited)	7

1

#### STRAN & COMPANY, INC. BALANCE SHEETS

	March 31, 2023		De	ecember 31, 2022
		(unaudited)		
ASSETS ASSETS				
CURRENT ASSETS:	ø	10 506 505	ø	15 252 756
Cash	\$	10,596,595	\$	15,253,756
Investments		10,269,101		9,779,355
Accounts Receivable, Net		11,914,586		14,442,626
Deferred Income Taxes		1,205,000		841,000
Inventory		5,665,924		6,867,564
Prepaid Corporate Taxes		87,459		87,459
Prepaid Expenses		611,320		386,884
Deposits		1,172,754		910,486
		41,522,739		48,569,130
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET:		1,193,356		1,000,090
OTHER ASSETS:				
Intangible Assets - Customer Lists, Net		5,654,804		6,272,205
Right of Use Asset - Office Leases				
Night of Ose Asset - Office Leases	_	775,742	_	784,683
	_	6,430,546	_	7,056,888
	\$	49,146,641	\$	56,626,108
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY				
CURRENT LIABILITIES:				
Current Portion of Contingent Earn-Out Liabilities	\$	2,171,603	\$	1,809,874
Current Portion of Lease Liability	Ψ	320,197	Ψ	324,594
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses		2,938,995		4,051,657
Accrued Payroll and Related		674,123		608,589
Unearned Revenue		1,871,846		633,148
Rewards Program Liability		1,6/1,640		6,000,000
Sales Tax Payable		259,633		365,303
Note Payable - Wildman				
Note Fayable - Wildinan	_	162,358	_	162,358
		8,398,755		13,955,523
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:				
Long-Term Contingent Earn-Out Liabilities		1,594,944		2,845,944
Long-Term Lease Liability		455,545		460,089
	_	2,050,489		3,306,033
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:				
Common Stock, \$.0001 Par Value; 300,000,000 Shares Authorized, 18,483,334 and 18,475,521 Shares Issued and Outstanding as				
of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively		1,849		1,848
Additional Paid-In Capital		38,306,533		38,279,151
Retained Earnings		389,015		1,083,553
		38,697,397		39,364,552
	\$	49,146,641	\$	56,626,108

 $\label{thm:companying} \textit{The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited financial statements}.$ 

## STRAN & COMPANY, INC. STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS (LOSS) AND RETAINED EARNINGS THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022 (UNAUDITED)

	2023	2022
SALES	\$ 15,776,247	\$ 12,259,583
COST OF SALES:		
Purchases	10,023,546	7,956,616
Freight	1,058,748	1,084,802
	11,082,294	9,041,418
GROSS PROFIT	4,693,953	3,218,165
OPERATING EXPENSES:		
General and Administrative Expenses	6,079,095	4,024,218
·	6,079,095	4,024,218
EARNINGS (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS	(1,385,142)	(806,053)
OTHER INCOME AND (EXPENSE):		
Other Income (Expense)	56,637	(3,680)
Interest Income (Expense)	138,082	90,595
Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments	131,885	(3,731)
	326,604	83,184
EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES	(1,058,538)	(722,869)
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES	(364,000)	(177,055)
NET EARNINGS (LOSS)	(694,538)	(545,814)
NET EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE		
Basic	\$ (0.04)	\$ (0.03)
Diluted	\$ (0.04)	\$ (0.03)
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING		
Basic	18,477,604	20,061,143
Diluted	18,477,604	20,061,143

#### STRAN & COMPANY, INC. STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022 (UNAUDITED)

	Commo	on Sto	ock	Additional k Paid in Retained Value Capital Earnings							Total tockholders
	Shares		Value			Equity					
Balance, January 1, 2022	19,753,852	\$	1,976	\$	39,747,649	\$	1,861,994	\$	41,611,619		
IPO Warrants Exercised	271,589		27		1,307,335		-		1,307,362		
Asset Acquisition	46,083		5		99,995		-		100,000		
Stock-Based Compensation	56,264		6		118,686		-		118,692		
Net Earnings (Loss)	=		-		-		(545,814)		(545,814)		
Balance, March 31, 2022	20,127,788	\$	2,014	\$	41,273,665	\$	1,316,180	\$	42,591,859		
Balance, January 1, 2023	18,475,521	\$	1,848	\$	38,279,151	\$	1,083,553	\$	39,364,552		
Stock-Based Compensation	7,813		1		27,382		-		27,383		
Net Earnings (Loss)	-		-		-		(694,538)		(694,538)		
Balance, March 31, 2023	18,483,334	\$	1,849	\$	38,306,533	\$	389,015	\$	38,697,397		

#### STRAN & COMPANY, INC. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022 (UNAUDITED)

	2023		2022	
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:				
Net Earnings (Loss)	\$	(694,538)	\$	(545,814)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:	•	( ,)	•	( )
Deferred Income Taxes (Credit)		(364,000)		(174,400)
Depreciation and Amortization		259,412		144,253
Intangible Asset Impairment, Net		(55,687)		64
Reduction in Contingent Earn-Out Liability		-		(215,360)
Stock-Based Compensation		27,382		118,692
Unrealized Gain on Investments		(93,884)		-
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:				
Accounts Receivable, Net		2,528,040		(861,952)
Inventory		1,201,640		(916,666)
Prepaid Expenses		(224,436)		126,100
Deposits		(262,268)		(538,244)
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses		(1,112,662)		(980,731)
Accrued Payroll and Related		65,534		(125,895)
Unearned Revenue		1,238,698		1,064,773
Rewards Program Liability		(6,000,000)		10,000,000
Sales Tax Payable		(105,670)		3,924
		(3,592,439)		7,098,744
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:				
Additions to Intangible Assets - Customer Lists		-		(540,290)
Additions to Property and Equipment		(284,959)		(87,624)
Purchase of Investments		(395,862)		-
		(680,821)		(627,914)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:				
Debt Reduction:				
Contingent Earn-Out Liabilities		(383,901)		_
Proceeds from Warrants Exercised		-		1,307,362
		(383,901)		1,307,362
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH		(4,657,161)		7,778,192
TIDE INCIDENCE (DECRETION) IN CHOIC		(4,057,101)		1,110,172
CASH - BEGINNING		15,253,756		32,226,668
CASH - ENDING	\$	10,596,595	\$	40,004,860

# STRAN & COMPANY, INC. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022 (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

#### SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

3,731
5,073
5,000
,887
,887)
_
,

#### STRAN & COMPANY, INC. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

#### A. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

- 1. Organization Stran & Company, Inc., (the "Company") was incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and commenced operations on November 17, 1995. The Company re-incorporated under the laws of the State of Nevada on May 24, 2021.
- Operations The Company is an outsourced marketing solutions provider that sells branded products to customers. The Company purchases products and branding through various third-party manufacturers and decorators and resells the finished goods to customers.

In addition to selling branded products, the Company offers clients custom sourcing capabilities; a flexible and customizable e-commerce solution for promoting branded merchandise and other promotional products, managing promotional loyalty and incentives, print collateral, and event assets, order and inventory management, and designing and hosting online retail popup shops, fixed public retail online stores, and online business-to-business service offerings; creative and merchandising services; warehousing/fulfillment and distribution; print-on-demand; kitting; point of sale displays; and loyalty and incentive programs.

- 3. Method of Accounting The Company's financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. ("U.S. GAAP").
- 4. Emerging Growth Company The Company is an "emerging growth company," as defined in Section 2(a) of the Securities Act, of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), as modified by the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the "JOBS Act"), and it may take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not emerging growth companies including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in its periodic reports and proxy statements, and exemptions from the requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation and approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved. Further, Section 102(b)(1) of the JOBS Act exempts emerging growth companies from being required to comply with new or revised financial accounting standards until private companies (that is, those that have not had a Securities Act registration statement declared effective or do not have a class of securities registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act")) are required to comply with the new or revised financial accounting standards. The JOBS Act provides that a company can elect to opt out of the extended transition period and comply with the requirements that apply to non-emerging growth companies but any such election to opt out is irrevocable. The Company has elected not to opt out of such extended transition period which means that when a standard is issued or revised and it has different application dates for public or private companies, the Company, as an emerging growth company, can adopt the new or revised standard. This may make comparison of the Company's unaudited consolidated financial statements with another public company which is neither an emerging growth company nor an emerging growth company which has opted out of using the exten
- 5. Cash and Cash Equivalents For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
- 6. Fair Value Measurements and Fair Value of Financial Instruments The carrying value of certain financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable and accrued expenses, and due to related party are carried at historical cost basis, which approximates their fair values because of the nature of these instruments.

The Company analyzes all financial instruments with features of both liabilities and equity under the Financial Accounting Standard Board's (the "FASB") accounting standard for such instruments. Under this standard, financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The Company did not identify any assets or liabilities that are required to be presented on the balance sheet at fair value in accordance with the FASB Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 820.

ASC 825-10 "Financial Instruments", allows entities to voluntarily choose to measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value (fair value option). The fair value option may be elected on an instrument-by-instrument basis and is irrevocable unless a new election date occurs. If the fair value option is elected for an instrument, unrealized gains and losses for that instrument should be reported in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. The Company did not elect to apply the fair value option to any outstanding instruments.

- 7. Investments Our investments consist of U.S. treasury bills, corporate bonds, mutual funds, and money market funds. We classify our investments as available-for-sale and record these investments at fair value. Investments with an original maturity of greater than three months at the date of purchase and less than one year from the date of the balance sheet are classified as current and those with maturities of more than one year from the date of the balance sheet are classified as long-term in the balance sheet.
- 8. Concentration of Credit Risk Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of accounts receivable and deposits in excess of federally insured limits. These risks are managed by performing ongoing credit evaluations of customers' financial condition and by maintaining all deposits in high quality financial institutions.
- 9. Inventory Inventory consists of finished goods (branded products) and goods in process (un-branded products awaiting decoration). All inventory is stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market value.
- 10. Property and Equipment Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred whereas major betterments are capitalized. Depreciation is provided using straight-line and accelerated methods over five years.
- 11. Intangible Asset Customer List The Company accounts for intangible assets under the provision of ASC 350-20 "Accounting for Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." The provision establishes standards for valuation and amortization of unidentifiable assets.
  - Under ASC 350-20-35-1, the cost of unidentifiable intangible assets is measured by the excess cost over the fair value of net assets acquired. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives shall not be amortized until its useful life is determined to be no longer infinite. The intangible assets are evaluated when a triggering event occurs, at least annually, for potential impairment.
- 12. Fair Value of Financial Instruments The Company's financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accounts payable approximate their fair values based on their nature.
- 13. Revenue Recognition In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers ("ASU 2014-09"), which is aimed at creating common revenue recognition guidance for GAAP and the International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). This new guidance provides a comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes most current revenue guidance issued by the FASB. ASU 2014-09 also requires both qualitative and quantitative disclosures, including descriptions of performance obligations.

On January 1, 2019, the Company adopted ASU 2014-09 and all related amendments ("ASC 606") and applied its provisions to all uncompleted contracts using the modified retrospective basis. The application of this new revenue recognition standard resulted in no adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings.

Performance Obligations - Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when, or as, the Company satisfies its performance obligations by transferring goods or services to customers. A good or service is transferred to a customer when, or as, the customer obtains control of that good or service. A performance obligation may be satisfied over time or at a point in time. Revenue from a performance obligation satisfied at a point in time is recognized at the point in time that the company determines the customer has obtained control over the promised good or service. The amount of revenue recognized reflects the consideration of which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for the promised goods or services.

The following provides detailed information on the recognition of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

<u>Product Sales</u> - The Company is engaged in the development and sale of promotional programs and products. Revenue on the sale of these products is recognized after orders are shipped.

<u>Reward Card Program</u> - The Company facilitates a reward card program for a customer and receives a transaction fee when the customer issues or replenishes a new reward card. Revenue is recognized when cards are issued or replenished.

All performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time.

- 14. Freight The Company includes freight charges as a component of cost of goods sold.
- 15. Uncertainty in Income and Other Taxes The Company adopted the standards for *Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes* (income, sales, use, and payroll), which required the Company to report any uncertain tax positions and to adjust its financial statements for the impact thereof. As of March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company determined that it had no tax positions that did not meet the "more likely than not" threshold of being sustained by the applicable tax authority. The Company files tax and information returns in the United States Federal, Massachusetts, and other state jurisdictions. These returns are generally subject to examination by tax authorities for the last three years.
- 16. Income Taxes Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in the financial statements and consist of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes. Deferred taxes are provided for differences between the basis of assets and liabilities for financial statements and income tax purposes. The Company has historically utilized accelerated tax depreciation to minimize federal income taxes.
- 17. Earnings/ Loss per Share Basic earnings per share ("EPS") is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock plus the effect of dilutive potential shares of common stock outstanding during the period using the treasury stock method. Dilutive potential common shares include the issuance of potential shares of common stock for outstanding stock options and warrants.
- 18. Stock-Based Compensation The Company accounts for its stock-based awards in accordance with FASB ASC 718, Compensation Stock Compensation. ASC 718 requires all stock-based payments to employees to be recognized in the consolidated statements of operations based on their fair values. The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of options granted. The Company is recognizing compensation costs only for those stock-based awards expected to vest after considering expected forfeitures. Cumulative compensation expense is at least equal to the compensation expense for vested awards. Stock-based compensation is recognized on a straight-line basis over the service period of each award. The Company records compensation cost as an element of general and administrative expense in the accompanying statements of operations.
- 19. Stock Option and Warrant Valuation Stock option and warrant valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions. The fair value of stock-based payment awards was estimated using the Black-Scholes option model with a volatility figure derived from an index of historical stock prices for comparable entities. For warrants and stock options issued to non- employees, the Company accounts for the expected life based on the contractual life of the warrants and stock options. For employees, the Company accounts for the expected life of options in accordance with the "simplified" method, which is used for "plain-vanilla" options, as defined in the accounting standards codification. The risk-free interest rate was determined from the implied yields of U.S. Treasury zero-coupon bonds with a remaining life consistent with the expected term of the options.
- 20. Sales Tax Sales tax collected from customers is recorded as a liability, pending remittance to the taxing jurisdiction. Consequently, sales taxes have been excluded from revenues and costs. The Company remits sales, use, and GST taxes to Massachusetts, other state jurisdictions, and Canada, respectively.
- 21. Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

- 22. Recent Accounting Pronouncements Management does not believe that any recently issued, but not yet effective accounting pronouncements, if adopted, would have a material effect on its financial statements.
- 23. Subsequent Events Management has evaluated events occurring after the balance sheet date through May 15, 2023, the date in which the financial statements were available to be issued.

#### B. **INVESTMENTS**:

The Company's investments consisted of the following as of March 31, 2023:

		Unrealized		Fair
	 Cost	G	ain (Loss)	Value
Money Market Fund	\$ 34,753	\$	-	\$ 34,753
Corporate Bonds	4,547,346		(94,236)	4,453,110
Mutual Funds	740,188		2,510	742,698
US Treasury Bills	5,051,133		(12,593)	5,038,540
	\$ 10,373,420	\$	(104,319)	\$ 10,269,101

The Company's investments consisted of the following as of December 31, 2022:

	Unrealized Cost Gain (Loss)		Fair Value	
Money Market Fund	\$ 487,324		\$ 487,324	
Corporate Bonds	4,540,067		4,403,794	
Mutual Funds	-	· -	-	
US Treasury Bills	4,931,084	(42,847)	4,888,237	
	\$ 9,958,475	\$ (179,120)	\$ 9,779,355	

#### C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS:

We measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value. Fair value is determined based upon the exit price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants, as determined by either the principal market or the most advantageous market. Inputs used in the valuation techniques to derive fair values are classified based on a three-level hierarchy, as follows:

- <u>Level 1</u>: Observable inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.
- <u>Level 2</u>: Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets with insufficient volume or infrequent transactions (less active markets); or model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs are observable or can be derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.
- <u>Level 3</u>: Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the asset or liability.

We consider an active market to be one in which transactions for the asset or liability occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis, and we consider an inactive market to be one in which there are infrequent or few transactions for the asset or liability, the prices are not current, or price quotations vary substantially either over time or among market makers.

As of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, all investments are classified as level 1.

#### D. ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS, NET:

The Company uses the allowance method to account for uncollectible accounts receivable balances. Under the allowance method, an estimate of uncollectible customer balances is made based on the Company's prior history and other factors such as credit quality of the customer and economic conditions of the market. Based on these factors, at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, there was an allowance for doubtful accounts of \$223,705 and \$264,160, respectively.

#### E. **INVENTORY**:

Inventory consists of the following as of:

		March 31,		December 31,	
	_	2023		2022	
Finished Goods (branded products)	\$	5,642,955	\$	6,557,040	
Goods in Process (un-branded products)	_	22,969		310,524	
	\$	5,665,924	\$	6,867,564	

#### F. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Property and Equipment consists of the following as of:

	I	March 31,		ecember 31,
	2023			2022
Leasehold Improvements	\$	5,664	\$	5,664
Office Furniture and Equipment		511,677		501,395
Software		1,800,053		1,525,376
Transportation Equipment		62,424		62,424
		2,379,818		2,094,859
Accumulated Depreciation		(1,186,462)		(1,094,769)
	\$	1,193,356	\$	1,000,090

#### G. INTANGIBLE ASSET - CUSTOMER LISTS:

#### Wildman Acquisition

The Company has acquired select assets and the customer list of an entity as discussed in Note J and Note N. The Company, using a Contingent Earn-Out Calculation, made the determination that the amounts allocated to Intangible Asset - Customer List amounted to \$2,253,690. The intangible asset - customer list is amortized over 10 years. At March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company's evaluation of Intangible Asset - Customer List has resulted in accumulated impairment of \$336,282 and \$299,912, respectively.

Amortization expense related to intangible asset - customer list was \$48,843 and \$53,055 for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022.

Estimated future amortization expense for the years:

2023	\$ 191,741
2024	191,741
2025	191,741
2026 2027	191,741
2027	191,741
	\$ 958,704

#### G.A.P. Acquisition

The Company has acquired select assets and the customer list of an entity as discussed in Note J and Note N. The Company, using a Contingent Earn-Out Calculation, made the determination that the amounts allocated to Intangible Asset - Customer List amounted to \$2,275,290. The intangible asset - customer list is amortized over 10 years. At March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company's evaluation of Intangible Asset - Customer List has resulted in accumulated impairment of \$469,000 and zero, respectively.

Amortization expense related to intangible asset - customer lists was \$49,066 and \$37,922 for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Estimated future amortization expense for the years:

2023	180,629
2024	180,629
2025	180,629
2026 2027	180,629
2027	 180,629
	\$ 903,145

#### Trend Acquisition

The Company has acquired select assets and the customer list of an entity as discussed in Note J and Note N. The Company, using a Contingent Earn-Out Calculation, made the determination that the amounts allocated to Intangible Asset - Customer List amounted to \$1,659,831. The intangible asset - customer list is amortized over 10 years. At December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company's evaluation of Intangible Asset - Customer List has resulted in accumulated impairment of zero.

Amortization expense related to intangible asset - customer lists was \$41,496 and zero for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Estimated future amortization expense for the years:

2023	\$ 165,983
2024	165,983
2025	165,983 165,983
2026 2027	165,983
2027	165,983
	\$ 829,916

#### Premier Acquisition

The Company has acquired select assets and the customer list of an entity as discussed in Note J and Note N. The Company, using a Contingent Earn-Out Calculation, made the determination that the amounts allocated to Intangible Asset - Customer List amounted to \$1,032,600. The intangible asset - customer list is amortized over 10 years. At March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company's evaluation of Intangible Asset - Customer List has resulted in accumulated impairment of zero.

Amortization expense related to intangible asset - customer lists was \$28,315 and zero for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Estimated future amortization expense for the years:

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027	\$ 113,260
2024	113,260 113,260
2025	113,260
2026	113,260
2027	113,260
	\$ 566,300

#### H. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses as of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 consisted of the following:

	ľ	March 31,		March 31, Decem		cember 31,
		2023		2022		
Cost of Sales - Purchases	\$	1,989,989	\$	3,571,942		
Other Payables and Accrued Expenses		949,006		479,715		
	\$	2,938,995	\$	4,051,657		

#### I. NOTE PAYABLE - LINE OF CREDIT:

The Company has a \$7,000,000 line of credit with Salem Five Cents Savings Bank at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, borrowings on this line of credit amounted to zero. The line bears interest at prime rate plus .5% per annum. At March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the interest rate was 8.50% and 8.00%, respectively. The line is reviewed annually and is due on demand. This line of credit is secured by substantially all assets of the Company.

#### J. CONTINGENT EARN-OUT LIABILITIES:

#### Wildman Acquisition

In connection with the asset acquisition, as discussed in Note N, the customer list was purchased using a Contingent Earn-Out Calculation. The purchase price is equal to fifteen percent (15%) of the gross profit earned from the sale of product to the customer list for years 1 and thirty percent (30%) for years 2 and 3. Payments are due on the first anniversary date of the purchase and then quarterly thereafter. At March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the current portion of the earn-out liability amounted to \$502,603 and \$742,874, respectively. At March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the long-term portion of the earn-out liability amounted to zero.

#### G.A.P. Acquisition

In connection with the asset acquisition, as discussed in Note N, the customer list was purchased using a Contingent Earn-Out Calculation. The purchase price is equal to seventy percent (70%) of the gross profit over \$1,500,000 earned from the sale of product to the customer list for years 1 and 2 in addition to fixed payments of \$180,000 and \$300,000 for years 1 and 2, respectively. Payments are due on the anniversary date of the purchase. At March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the current portion of the earn-out liability amounted to \$986,000 and \$649,000, respectively. At March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the long-term portion of the earn-out liability amounted to zero and \$986,000, respectively.

#### Trend Acquisition

In connection with the asset acquisition, as discussed in Note N, the customer list was purchased using a Contingent Earn-Out Calculation. The purchase price is equal to forty percent (40%) of the gross profit over \$800,000 earned from the sale of product to the customer list for years 1 through 4 in addition to fixed payments of \$37,500 for years 1 and 2 and \$25,000 for years 3 and 4, respectively. Payments are due on the anniversary date of the purchase. At March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the current portion of the earn-out liability amounted to \$420,500 and \$155,500, respectively. At March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the long-term portion of the earn-out liability amounted to \$949,844 and \$1,214,844, respectively.

#### Premier Acquisition

In connection with the asset acquisition, as discussed in Note N, the customer list was purchased using a Contingent Earn-Out Calculation. The purchase price is equal to forty-five percent (45%) of the gross profit over \$350,000 earned from the sale of product to the customer list for years 1 through 3 in addition to fixed payments of \$60,000 for year 1, \$40,000 for year 2, and \$30,000 for year 3. Payments are due on the anniversary date of the purchase. At March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the current portion of the earn-out liability amounted to \$262,500. At March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the long-term portion of the earn-out liability amounted to \$645,100.

#### K. <u>UNEARNED REVENUE</u>:

Unearned revenue includes customer deposits and deferred revenue which represent prepayments from customers. At March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company had unearned revenue totaling \$1,871,846 and \$633,148, respectively.

	March 31, 2023	December 31, 2022
Balance at January 1,	\$ 633,148	\$ 721,608
Revenue Recognized	(15,776,247)	(58,953,467)
Amounts Collected or Invoiced	17,014,945	58,865,007
Unearned Revenue	\$ 1,871,846	\$ 633,148

#### L. REWARD CARD PROGRAM LIABILITY:

The Company manages reward card programs for customers. Under this program, the Company receives cash and simultaneously records a liability for the total amount received. These accounts are adjusted on a periodic basis as reward cards are funded or reduced at the direction of the customers. At March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the company had deposits totaling zero and \$6,000,000, respectively.

#### M. NOTE PAYABLE - WILDMAN:

In connection with the asset acquisition as discussed in Note N, the Company had an amount due to the seller of \$162,358 for the inventory purchased. This amount accrues no interest, and is to be paid "as used" on a quarterly basis through the three years earn-out period as discussed in Note J. At March 31, 2023, the note totaled \$162,358. The Company anticipates that the note will be paid in full in 2023, accordingly the note payable has been classified as current on the balance sheet as of March 31, 2023.

#### N. AQUISITIONS:

#### Wildman Acquisition

On August 24, 2020, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement to acquire inventory, fixed assets, and a customer list from Wildman Business Group, LLC (WBG). In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB" ASC 805), "Business Combinations", the acquisition method of accounting is used and recognition of the assets acquired is at fair value as of the acquisition dates. All acquisition costs are expensed as incurred. The consideration paid has been allocated to the assets acquired based on their estimated fair values at the acquisition date. The estimate of fair values for tangible assets acquired were agreed to by both buyer and seller. The aggregate purchase price was \$2,937,222.

Fair Value of Identifiable Assets Acquired:	
Inventory	\$ 649,433
Property and Equipment	34,099
Intangible - Customer List	2,253,690
	\$ 2,937,222
Consideration Paid:	
Cash	\$ 521,174
Note Payable - Wildman	162,358
Contingent Earn-Out Liability	2,253,690
	\$ 2,937,222

14

#### G.A.P. Acquisition

On January 31, 2022, the Company closed on an asset purchase agreement to acquire inventory, working capital, and a customer list from G.A.P. Promotions LLC (G.A.P.). In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB" ASC 805), "Business Combinations", the acquisition method of accounting is used and recognition of the assets acquired is at fair value as of the acquisition dates. All acquisition costs are expensed as incurred. The consideration paid has been allocated to the assets acquired based on their estimated fair values at the acquisition date. The estimate of fair values for tangible assets acquired were agreed to by both buyer and seller. The aggregate purchase price was \$3,245,872.

Fair Value of Identifiable Assets Acquired:	
Inventory	\$ 91,096
Working Capital	879,486
Intangible - Customer List	2,275,290
	\$ 3,245,872
Consideration Paid:	
Cash	\$ 1,510,872
Restricted Stock	100,000
Contingent Earn-Out Liability	1,635,000
	\$ 3,245,872

#### Trend Acquisition

On August 31, 2022 the Company closed on an asset purchase agreement to acquire cash, accounts receivable, inventory, fixed assets, and a customer list from Trend Brand Solutions. In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB" ASC 805), "Business Combinations", the acquisition method of accounting is used and recognition of the assets acquired is at fair value as of the acquisition dates. All acquisition costs are expensed as incurred. The consideration paid has been allocated to the assets acquired based on their estimated fair values at the acquisition date. The estimate of fair values for tangible assets acquired were agreed to by both buyer and seller. The aggregate purchase price was \$2,193,166.

Fair Value of Identifiable Assets Acquired:	
Cash	\$ 63,624
Accounts Receivable	346,822
Inventory	108,445
Fixed Assets	14,444
Intangible - Customer List	1,659,831
	\$ 2,193,166
Consideration Paid:	
Cash	\$ 1,488
Assumption of Liabilities	721,334
Restricted Stock	100,000
Contingent Earn-Out Liability	1,370,344
	\$ 2,193,166

#### Premier Acquisition

On December 20, 2022, the Company closed on an asset purchase agreement to acquire cash, accounts receivable, and a customer list from Premier Business Services (Premier). In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB" ASC 805), "Business Combinations", the acquisition method of accounting is used and recognition of the assets acquired is at fair value as of the acquisition dates. All acquisition costs are expensed as incurred. The consideration paid has been allocated to the assets acquired based on their estimated fair values at the acquisition date. The estimate of fair values for tangible assets acquired were agreed to by both buyer and seller. The aggregate purchase price was \$1,390,533.

Fair Value of Identifiable Assets Acquired:	
Cash	\$ 13,855
Accounts Receivable	344,078
Intangible - Customer List	1,032,600
	\$ 1,390,533
Consideration Paid:	
Cash	\$ 440,025
Assumption of Liabilities	17,908
Restricted Stock	25,000
Contingent Earn-Out Liability	907,600
	\$ 1,390,533

#### O. LEASE OBLIGATIONS:

The following is a summary of the Company's right of use assets and lease liabilities as of:

Operating Leases	N	1arch 31, 2023	Dec	2022
Right-Of-Use Assets	\$	775,742	\$	784,683
Lease Liability:				
Right-Of-Use Asset - Office Leases - Current		320,197		324,594
Right-Of-Use Asset - Office Leases - Non-Current		455,545		460,089
	\$	775,742	\$	784,683
Rent expense for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 totaled \$104,687 and \$105,502, respectively.  The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments:				
2023			\$	320,197
2024				322,491
2025				133,054
2026				-
2027				_
			\$	775,742

Manah 21

As of March 31, 2023, the Company's operating leases had a weighted average remaining lease term of 2.5 years and a weighted average discount rate of 2%.

#### P. STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY:

#### Common Stock

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Incorporation dated May 24, 2021, the Company is authorized to issue 300,000,000 shares of \$.0001 par value common stock, of which 18,483,334 and 20,127,788 shares were issued and outstanding at March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Common stockholders are entitled to one vote per share and are entitled to receive dividends when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors.

#### <u>Initial Public Offering</u>

On November 12, 2021, the Company consummated its Initial Public Offering (the IPO) of 4,987,951 Units at a price of \$4.15 per Unit, generating gross proceeds of \$20,699,996, with each Unit consisting of one share of common stock, \$0.0001 par value, and one redeemable publicly-traded warrant. IPO proceeds were recorded net of offering costs of \$2,755,344. Offering costs consisted principally of underwriting, legal, accounting and other expenses that are directly related to the IPO.

Each redeemable publicly-traded warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of common stock, at a price of \$4.81375 per share as of March 31, 2022, which will expire five years from issuance.

Simultaneously with the consummation of the closing of the IPO, the Company issued the underwriters a total of 149,639 warrants that are exercisable beginning six months after the date of the IPO at an exercise price of \$5.19 with a five-year expiration term.

As of March 31, 2023 and 2022, warrant holders have exercised 659,456 warrants. As of March 31, 2023 and 2022, there were 4,478,134 warrants outstanding.

#### Private Placement

On December 10, 2021, the Company consummated the sale of 4,371,926 shares of common stock at a price of \$4.97 per share in a private placement (the PIPE), generating gross proceeds of \$21,278,472, with each investor also receiving a warrant to purchase up to a number of shares of common stock equal to 125% of the number of shares of common stock purchased by such investor in the private placement, or a total of 5,464,903 shares, at an exercise price of \$4.97 per share. PIPE proceeds were recorded net of offering costs of \$1,499,858. Offering costs consisted principally of placement agent, legal, accounting and other expenses that are directly related to the PIPE.

Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase up to 125% of the number of shares of common stock purchased by such investor in the private placement, or a total of 5,464,903 shares which will expire five years from issuance. The warrants have certain downward pricing adjustment mechanisms, including with respect to any subsequent equity sale that is deemed a dilutive issuance, in which case the warrants will be subject to a floor price of \$4.80 per share before shareholder approval is obtained, and after shareholder approval is obtained, such floor price will be reduced to \$1.00 per share, as set forth in the warrants. On December 10, 2021, the holders of shares of common stock entitled to vote approximately 65.4% of the Company's outstanding voting stock on December 10, 2021 approved the Company's entry into the private placement. The Company filed preliminary and definitive information statements on Schedule 14C with the SEC on December 29, 2021 and January 11, 2022, respectively, and delivered copies of the definitive information statement to shareholders January 12, 2022. On January 31, 2022, the stockholders' consent became effective pursuant to Rule 14c-2 under the Exchange Act. As a result, the exercise price of the private placement warrants may be reduced to as low as \$1.00 per share if their downward-pricing adjustment mechanisms become applicable.

Simultaneously with the consummation of the closing of the PIPE, the Company issued the placement agent a total of 131,158 warrants that are exercisable beginning six months from the date of the PIPE at an exercise price of \$4.97 with a five-year expiration term.

As of March 31, 2023 and 2022 warrant holders have exercised zero warrants. As of March 31, 2023 and 2022, there were 5,596,061 warrants outstanding.

#### Stock Purchase Warrants

Stock purchase warrants issued with the IPO and the PIPE are accounted for as equity in accordance with ASC 480, Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company's Own Stock, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity.

The following table reflects all outstanding and exercisable warrants at March 31, 2023 and 2022.

	Numbers of Warrants Outstanding	 Weighted Average Exercise Price	Weighted Average Life (Years)
Balance January 1, 2022	10,345,784	\$ 4.90	5
Warrants Issued	-	-	=
Warrants Exercised	(271,589)	\$ 4.81	-
Balance March 31, 2022	10,074,195	\$\$4.91	5
D. L. J. 2022	10.074.105	004.01	4
Balance January 1, 2023	10,074,195	\$\$4.91	4
Warrants Issued	-	-	-
Warrants Exercised	_	_	
Balance March 31, 2023	10,074,195	<u>\$\$4.91</u>	4

All warrants are exercisable for a period of five years from the date of issuance.

#### Stock Repurchase Program

On February 21, 2022, the Board of Directors of the Company authorized a repurchase of up to \$10 million of the Company's shares from time to pursuant to a stock repurchase program, or the Repurchase Program. Under the terms of the Repurchase Program, the Company may repurchase shares through open market or negotiated private transactions. The timing and extent of any purchases depend upon ongoing assessments of the Company's capital needs, market conditions and the price of the Company's common stock, and other corporate considerations, as determined by management, and are subject to the restrictions relating to volume, price and timing under applicable laws, including but not limited to, Rule 10b-18 promulgated under the Exchange Act.

Below is a table containing information about purchases made by the company:

				Maximum Approximate Dollar Value
			Total Number	of Shares
			of Shares	that May
			Purchased as	Yet be
			Part of Publicly	Purchased
	Total Number	Average	Announced	Under the
	of Shares	Price Paid	Plans or	Plans or
Period	Purchased	per Share	Programs	Programs
April 1, 2022 - December 31, 2022	1.777.657	\$ 1.87	1.777.657	\$ 6.667.595

No repurchases of our common stock were made during the three months ended March 31, 2023.

#### Q. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION:

In November 2021, the Board of Directors adopted the Amended and Restated 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2021 Plan") which provides for the granting of non-qualified stock options and restricted stock to the Company's employees, officers, directors, and outside consultants to purchase shares of the Company's common stock. The number of shares of common stock available for issuance under the 2021 Plan is 942,068 shares of common stock.

Stock-based compensation expense included the following components as of March 31,:

	2023	2022
Stock Options	\$ 13	3,281 28,730
Restricted Stock	14	4,102 89,962
	2′	7,383 118,692

All stock-based compensation expense is recorded in General and Administrative expense in the Statement of Earnings.

#### Non-Qualified Stock Options

The fair value of options is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using the assumptions noted in the table below. The fair value is amortized as compensation cost on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the awards, which is generally the vesting period. The Company uses historical data on employee turnover and terminations to estimate the percentage of options that will ultimately be exercised. Expected volatility is based on historical volatility from a representative sample of publicly traded companies. The expected term represents the period of time that the options are expected to be outstanding. The risk-free interest rate is estimated using the rate of return on U.S. Treasury Notes with a life that approximates the expected life of the option. Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual results differ from the estimates. Stock-based compensation is based on awards that are ultimately expected to vest.

Option awards are generally granted with an exercise price equal to the fair value of the Company's stock at the date of grant; those options generally vest based on four years of continuous service and have 10-years contractual terms.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model assumptions are as follows:

Risk-Free Interest Rate	3.58%
Expected Term	5.5-6.25 years
Expected Volatility	29.24%
Expected Dividends	0%

A summary of option activity under the 2021 Plan as of March 31, 2023 and 2022 and changes during the three months then ended is presented below:

Options	Shares	Weighted Average Exercise Price	Aggregate Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2022	1,587,000	\$ 4.15	\$ 3,045,700
Granted	61,000	\$ 1.80	-
Forfeited or Expired and Other Adj	(6,000)	\$ 4.15	-
Outstanding at March 31, 2022	1,642,000	\$ 4.06	\$ 
Exercisable at March 31, 2022	75,256	\$ 3.97	\$ -
Outstanding at January 1, 2023	1,558,000	\$ 4.17	
Granted	15,000	\$ 1.77	-
Forfeited or Expired and Other Adj	(9,333)	\$ 3.68	 _
Outstanding at March 31, 2023	1,563,667	\$ 4.09	\$ 
Exercisable at March 31, 2023	525,563	\$ 4.11	\$ -

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted during the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 was \$1.80 and \$1.77, respectively. The weighted-average remaining contractual term for the outstanding options is approximately 9 years and 10 years as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

#### Restricted Stock:

Restricted stock granted under the 2021 Plan generally vest over 10 years, based on continued employment, and are settled upon vesting shares of the Company's common stock on a one-for-one basis.

A summary of restricted stock activity under the 2021 Plan as of March 31, and changes during the three months then ended is presented below:

Restricted Stock	Time-Based
Outstanding at January 1, 2022	154,960
Granted	125,000
Vested	(56,263)
Forfeited	-
Outstanding at March 31, 2022	223,697
Outstanding at January 1, 2023	64,166
Granted	-
Vested	(7,813)
Forfeited	(1,333)
Outstanding at March 31, 2023	55,020

#### R. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE:

The following table presents the computation of basic and diluted net loss per common share as of March 31,:

			2023				2022	
	N	et Income		Shares	N	et Income		Shares
Net Earnings (Loss)	\$	(1,058,538)		18,477,604	\$	(722,869)	_	20,061,143
Basic earnings (loss) per share			\$ (0.04)				\$ (0.03)	
Effect of dilutive securities:								
Warrants				-				-
Stock Options				-				-
	\$	(1,058,538)		18,477,604	\$	(722,869)		20,061,143
Diluted earnings (loss) per share			\$ (0.04)				\$ (0.03)	

For the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, as a result of the net loss for the year, all warrants and stock options have been excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share and, therefore, there was no difference in the weighted average number of common shares for basic and diluted loss per share as the effect of all potentially dilutive shares outstanding was anti-dilutive. Warrants to purchase 10,074,195 of shares outstanding at March 31, 2023 and 2022 were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share. Stock options to purchase 525,563 and 75,256 shares of common stock outstanding at March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share.

#### S. **INCOME TAX PROVISION**:

The Company computes its provision for income taxes by applying the estimated annual effective tax rate to pretax income and adjust the provision for discrete tax items recorded in the period.

The provision for income taxes as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 consisted of the following:

	 2023	2022
Federal:		
Current	\$ -	\$ -
Deferred	(261,000)	(131,800)
Total	(261,000)	(131,800)
State:		
Current	-	-
Deferred	 (103,000)	(45,255)
Total	(103,000)	(45,255)
Provision for income taxes	\$ (364,000)	\$ (177,055)

The Company has an income tax NOL carryforward related to continued operations as of March 31, 2023 and 2022 of approximately \$4,143,000 and \$2,711,000, respectively. As of March 31, 2023 and 2022, the carryforward is recorded as a deferred tax asset of \$1,205,000 and \$287,400, respectively. Such deferred tax assets can be carried forward indefinitely.

#### T. ADVERTISING:

The Company follows the policy of charging the costs of advertising to expense as incurred. For the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, advertising costs amounted to \$172,325 and \$45,481, respectively.

#### U. MAJOR CUSTOMERS:

For the three months ended March 31, 2023, the Company had one major customer to which sales accounted for approximately 12.0% of the Company's revenues. The Company had accounts receivable from this customer amounting to 17.3% of the total accounts receivable balance.

For the three months ended March 31, 2022, the Company had one major customer to which sales accounted for approximately 12.3% of the Company's revenues. The Company had accounts receivable from this customer amounting to 16.8% of the total accounts receivable balance.

#### ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

The following management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations provides information that management believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding of our plans and financial condition. The following financial information is derived from our financial statements and should be read in conjunction with such financial statements and notes thereto set forth elsewhere herein.

#### **Use of Terms**

Except as otherwise indicated by the context and for the purposes of this report only, references in this report to "we," "us," "our" and the "Company" are to Stran & Company, Inc., a Nevada corporation.

#### **Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements**

This report contains forward-looking statements that are based on our management's beliefs and assumptions and on information currently available to us. All statements other than statements of historical facts are forward-looking statements. These statements relate to future events or to our future financial performance and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements about:

- the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic our operations and financial condition in general;
- social and economic trends due to the loosening of public health measures against the COVID-19 pandemic;
- the direction, intensity and duration of expected trends in freight expenses, raw material costs, port congestion, and other supply chain challenges;
- the timing, availability and effects on our stock price and financial condition of our stock repurchase program;
- · our goals and strategies;
- our future business development, financial condition and results of operations;
- expected changes in our revenue, costs or expenditures;
- growth and competition trends in our industry;
- our expectations regarding demand for, and market acceptance of, our products or services;
- our expectations regarding our relationships with investors, institutional funding partners and other parties with whom we collaborate;
- our expectations regarding the use of proceeds from our initial public offering and subsequent private placement;
- fluctuations in general economic and business conditions in the markets in which we operate; and
- relevant government policies and regulations relating to our industry.

In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as "may," "could," "will," "should," "would," "expect," "plan," "intend," "anticipate," "believe," "estimate," "predict," "potential," "project" or "continue" or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology. These statements are only predictions. You should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements because they involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which are, in some cases, beyond our control and which could materially affect results. Factors that may cause actual results to differ materially from current expectations include, among other things, those listed under Item 1A "Risk Factors" included in our Annual Reports on Form 10-K filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), and elsewhere in this report. If one or more of these risks or uncertainties occur, or if our underlying assumptions prove to be incorrect, actual events or results may vary significantly from those implied or projected by the forward-looking statements. No forward-looking statement is a guarantee of future performance.

In addition, statements that "we believe" and similar statements reflect our beliefs and opinions on the relevant subject. These statements are based upon information available to us as of the date of this report, and while we believe such information forms a reasonable basis for such statements, such information may be limited or incomplete, and our statements should not be read to indicate that we have conducted an exhaustive inquiry into, or review of, all potentially available relevant information. These statements are inherently uncertain and investors are cautioned not to unduly rely upon these statements.

The forward-looking statements made in this report relate only to events or information as of the date on which the statements are made in this report. Except as expressly required by the federal securities laws, there is no undertaking to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, changed circumstances or any other reason.

#### Overview

We are an outsourced marketing solutions provider that sells branded products to customers. We purchase products and branding through various third-party manufacturers and decorators and resell the finished goods to customers.

In addition to selling branded products, we offer clients custom sourcing capabilities; a flexible and customizable e-commerce solution for promoting branded merchandise and other promotional products, managing promotional loyalty and incentives, print collateral, and event assets, order and inventory management, and designing and hosting online retail popup shops, fixed public retail online stores, and online business-to-business service offerings; creative and merchandising services; warehousing/fulfillment and distribution; print-on-demand; kitting; point of sale displays; and loyalty and incentive programs.

We earn the majority of our revenue from the sale of unique, quality promotional products for a wide variety of industries primarily to support marketing efforts. We also derive revenues from service fees from loyalty programs, event management, print services, fulfillment services, and technology services.

The majority of our revenue is derived from program business, although only a small percentage of our customers are considered programmatic. For the years 2022 and 2021, program clients accounted for 82.2% and 75.7% of total revenue, respectively. For the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, program clients accounted for 75.4% and 81.8% of total revenue, respectively. Fewer than 350 of our more than 2,000 active customers are considered to be program clients. Our active customers are any organizations, businesses, or divisions of a parent organization which have purchased directly or indirectly from us within the last two years, and include organizations that have bought from other organizations for which Stran acts as an established sub-contractor. With a larger sales force and other resources, we believe we can convert more of our customer base from transactional customers into program clients with much greater revenue potential. We define transactional customers as customers that place an order with us and do not have an agreement with us covering ongoing branding requirements. We define program clients as clients that have a contractual obligation for specific ongoing branding needs. Program offerings include ongoing inventory, use of technology platform, warehousing, creative services, and additional client support. Those program customers are geared towards longer-lasting relationships that helps secure recurring revenue well into the future.

Our sales increased 28.7% year-over-year in the first quarter of 2023 compared to the first quarter of 2022, due to higher spending from existing clients as well as business from new customers. Additionally, we benefited from the acquisition of the G.A.P. Promotions, LLC, or G.A.P. Promotions, assets in January 2022, the assets of Trend Promotional Marketing Corporation (d/b/a Trend Brand Solutions), or Trend Brand Solutions, in August 2022, and the assets of Premier Business Services, or Premier NYC, in December 2022. We expect going forward that pent-up demand from more widespread immunity to the COVID-19 virus, the return of many significant in-person tradeshows and other industry-related opportunities, and societal reopening in general may help compensate for lower sales in prior periods. However, these trends are expected to be partially offset by continued increases in expenses, especially higher raw material costs and a more challenging supply chain. According to the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, the Producer Price Index for final demand moved up 2.7% for the 12 months ended in March 2023, on an unadjusted basis.

We believe that the COVID-19 pandemic has impacted Stran's operational and financial performance. For related discussion, see "—Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic" below.

As of March 31, 2023, we had approximately \$49.1 million of total assets with approximately \$38.7 million of total stockholders' equity.

#### **Recent Developments**

#### **Browner Employment Agreement**

As previously reported in a Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 20, 2023 (the "April 2023 Form 8-K"), on April 14, 2023, the Compensation Committee (the "Compensation Committee") of the Company approved an Employment Agreement with David Browner, the Company's Chief Financial Officer (the "Browner Employment Agreement"), and was entered into as of the same date. Under the Browner Employment Agreement, Mr. Browner will continue to be employed as the Company's Chief Financial Officer and will continue to function as its principal financial officer and principal accounting officer during the term of the agreement. The initial term of the agreement will be two years and will automatically extend an additional year each year unless one party gives 60 days' notice before the end of the term, unless terminated earlier in accordance with its terms as described below. Mr. Browner will receive an annual base salary of \$250,000. In addition, the Company will pay up to \$750 per month to maintain a leased automobile for business use by Mr. Browner.

For each fiscal year during the term of the Browner Employment Agreement, Mr. Browner will receive up to three cash bonuses and six equity bonuses depending on the Company's board of directors' or the Compensation Committee's certification of the Company's attainment of the performance-based conditions provided for in the agreement. The performance-based conditions will be based on an annual sales target, an annual gross profit target, and an annual net profit target. Each target will be set by the board of directors, the Compensation Committee, or an executive officer or other party delegated with such authority other than Mr. Browner, for the applicable fiscal year. Each target will generally be measured against the audited U.S. GAAP-compliant financial statements of the Company for that year, except that net profit or the equivalent item will be adjusted to exclude expenses related to annual bonus payments to the Company's executive officers or members of its management team.

Each portion of an equity bonus consisting of common stock will be granted upon certification of attainment of the respective target. Each portion of an equity bonus consisting of vesting of a stock option will relate to a stock option that was or will be granted on the date of the Browner Employment Agreement and at the beginning of each subsequent fiscal year during the term of the Browner Employment Agreement under a standard form of stock option agreement. On April 14, 2023, the Company granted Mr. Browner a stock option for the purchase of 100,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$1.72 per share, which was the closing price of the common stock on the Nasdaq Stock Market ("Nasdaq") on the date immediately preceding the date of grant, and which vests and becomes exercisable upon certification of attainment of the applicable targets by the board of directors or the Compensation Committee in accordance with the equity bonus terms described below. All equity bonuses will be awarded under the Stran & Company, Inc. 2021 Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan (the "Plan"). To the extent that equity bonuses of grants of common stock under the Browner Employment Agreement are designated Performance Compensation Awards (as defined by the Plan) by the board of directors or the Compensation Committee and to the extent that each fiscal year constitutes a Performance Period (as defined by the Plan), pursuant to the Plan, such awards must be granted as soon as administratively practicable following completion of the certification of the attainment of the performance-based conditions for such awards but in no event later than 2 1/2 months following the end during which the respective Performance Period is completed. Otherwise, such grants will be considered Performance Shares (as defined by the Plan) and will be granted when certified by the board of directors or the Compensation Committee.

An annual sales-based cash bonus will be awarded based on the percentage of the annual sales target that is certified as attained, as follows: (a) \$1,250 if 95% of the target is certified as attained; (b) \$5,000 if 100% of the target is certified as attained. An annual gross profit-based cash bonus will also be awarded based on the percentage of an annual gross profit target that is attained, as follows: (a) \$6,250 if 95% of the target is certified as attained, (b) \$25,000 if 100% of the target is certified as attained; (c) \$37,500 if 110% of the target is certified as attained; or (d) \$50,000 if 120% of the target is certified as attained. An annual net profit-based cash bonus will also be awarded based on the percentage of annual net profit target that is certified as attained, as follows: (a) \$5,000 if 95% of the target is certified as attained, (b) \$20,000 if 100% of the target is certified as attained; (c) \$30,000 if 110% of the target is certified as attained; or (d) \$40,000 if 120% of the target is certified as attained. In accordance with the Browner Employment Agreement, each cash bonus will be paid in three equal installments in the third, fourth and fifth months of the fiscal year following the fiscal year in which the respective target or targets are attained upon certification of the attainment of the respective target or targets.

Five of the six annual equity bonuses will consist of the grant of fully-vested shares of common stock and the vesting of a portion of the stock option granted each year under the Browner Employment Agreement. The other annual equity bonus will consist of the vesting of a portion of such stock option only. In each case, each annual equity bonus will be based on whether such bonus's designated target or target percentage is certified as attained, as follows: (1) grant of 5,000 shares and vesting of the stock option as to 7,500 shares if the annual sales target is certified as attained; (2) grant of 5,000 shares and vesting of the stock option as to 7,500 shares if the annual profit target is certified as attained; (3) grant of 5,000 shares and vesting of the stock option as to 7,500 shares if the annual net profit target is certified as attained; (4) grant of 10,000 shares and vesting of the stock option as to 12,500 shares if 125% of the annual net profit target is certified as attained; (5) grant of 10,000 shares and vesting of the stock option as to 15,000 shares if 150% of the annual net profit target is certified as attained; as attained; (6) vesting of the stock option as to 2,000 shares for every \$100,000 by which net profit is certified as exceeding 150% the annual net profit target, up to a maximum of 50,000 shares.

Under the Browner Employment Agreement, Mr. Browner will also be eligible for additional bonus amounts as determined by the board of directors within its sole discretion. Mr. Browner will receive unlimited paid time off and paid public holidays, standard executive benefits, standard directors and officers indemnification and insurance coverage, and business-related expense reimbursements.

Mr. Browner's employment is terminable with cause upon certain grounds by written notice, subject to a 30-day notice and cure period with respect to certain of these grounds for termination for cause. Mr. Browner may be terminated without cause upon 30 days' written notice. Mr. Browner may terminate employment with good reason upon certain grounds, subject to a 30-day notice and cure period with respect to certain of these grounds that must begin within 10 days of Mr. Browner's knowledge of the initial existence of the grounds for termination for good reason. The effect of Mr. Browner's termination of the Browner Employment Agreement without complying with the requirements to terminate with good reason will be equivalent to termination with cause. Termination under any provision of the agreement will generally result in the Company's obligation to provide accrued and unpaid or pending cash, equity or other compensation. If the Company terminates Mr. Browner without cause or he terminates for good reason, and provided that Mr. Browner signs the general release and waiver annexed to the agreement within 60 days, the Company will be required to pay the lesser of the number of months' severance remaining under the term of the agreement and either four months if the termination occurs during the first year of the term or three months if the termination occurs during the second year of the term, provided that Mr. Browner receives at least three months' severance; reimburse Mr. Browner for the first 18 months of the premiums associated with Mr. Browner's continuation of health insurance for him and his family pursuant to COBRA; and approve immediate vesting of any outstanding unvested equity awards granted to Mr. Browner during his employment and immediate lifting of all lockups and restrictions on sales or exercise of such awards. If the Company elects not to renew the Browner Employment Agreement, then the Company must pay three months' severance and reimburse the first six months of the premiums associated with Mr. Browner's continuation of health insurance for him and his family pursuant to COBRA. If Mr. Browner is terminated in the event of death or disability, then the Company must approve immediate vesting of any outstanding unvested equity awards granted to Mr. Browner during his employment and immediate lifting of all lockups and restrictions on sales or exercise of such awards. In addition, if the Company does not renew the term of the Browner Employment Agreement and Mr. Browner's termination occurs within 90 days before or 12 months after a Change in Control (as defined by the Browner Employment Agreement), then, provided that Mr. Browner signs the general release and waiver annexed to the agreement within 60 days, the Company must pay the same severance amount as described above in the event of a termination for cause or resignation for good reason; provide the same COBRA benefits as described above in the event of a termination for cause or resignation for good reason; and approve the immediate vesting of all equity awards held by Mr. Browner unless expressly provided otherwise by the governing documents for such awards. The Browner Employment Agreement also contains general confidentiality and non-competition provisions and Mr. Browner's stock option agreement contains general non-competition and nonsolicitation provisions.

The foregoing description of the Browner Employment Agreement is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the agreement, a copy of which was filed with the April 2023 Form 8-K as Exhibit 10.1.

#### Amended and Restated Audibert Consulting Agreement

As previously reported in the April 2023 Form 8-K, on April 14, 2023, the Compensation Committee approved an Amended and Restated Consulting Agreement (the "A&R Audibert Consulting Agreement") with John Audibert, the Company's Vice President of Growth and Strategic Initiatives, and his wholly-owned company, Josselin Capital Advisors, Inc. (the "Consultant"), and was entered into as of the same date. The A&R Audibert Consulting Agreement amended and restated the Consulting Agreement, dated as of December 2, 2021, among the Company, Mr. Audibert, and the Consultant. Under the A&R Audibert Consulting Agreement, the Consultant will continue to provide services to the Company in connection with Mr. Audibert's position as an executive officer of the Company for a 24-month term, unless terminated earlier in accordance with its terms as described below. The Consultant will receive an annual fee of \$200,000 and a monthly automobile bonus of \$750.

For each fiscal year during the term of the A&R Audibert Consulting Agreement, the Consultant will receive up to six equity bonuses depending on the board of directors' or the Compensation Committee's certification of the Company's attainment of the performance-based conditions provided for such bonuses to be granted in the agreement. The performance-based conditions will be based on an annual sales target and an annual net profit target. Each target will be set by the board of directors, the Compensation Committee, or an executive officer or other party delegated with such authority other than Mr. Audibert, for the applicable fiscal year. Each target will generally be measured against the audited U.S. GAAP-compliant financial statements of the Company for that year, except that net profit or the equivalent item will be adjusted to exclude expenses related to annual bonus payments to the Company's executive officers or members of its management team.

Each fiscal year during the term of the A&R Audibert Consulting Agreement, the Consultant will be granted restricted common stock with performance-based vesting terms in the number of shares of restricted stock equal to \$80,000 divided by the closing price of the common stock on Nasdaq on the grant date under a standard form of restricted stock award agreement. Each restricted stock grant will vest as to the amounts described below upon certification by the board of directors or the Compensation Committee of attainment of the respective performance-based targets. For the first term year, the A&R Audibert Consulting Agreement provided that the restricted stock's grant date would be the date of the agreement and the number of shares would be based on the closing price of the common stock on the later of that date or the date of the approval of the grant by the board of directors or the Compensation Committee. For the second term year, the restricted stock will be granted at the beginning of the fiscal year upon approval of the board of directors or the Compensation Committee and will be equal to \$80,000 divided by the closing price of the common stock on the anniversary of the date of the agreement, or as otherwise determined by the board of directors or Compensation Committee. On April 14, 2023, the Consultant was granted 46,511 shares of restricted common stock based on the closing price of the common stock on the date immediately preceding the date of grant, and such amount was accepted by the Consultant as the restricted stock grant provided for by the Audibert A&R Consulting Agreement for the initial year of the term of the agreement.

In addition, on the date of the A&R Audibert Consulting Agreement and at the beginning of each subsequent fiscal year during the term of the agreement, the Consultant will be granted a stock option under a standard form of stock option agreement to purchase the maximum number of shares subject to approval of the board of directors or the Compensation Committee and the equity bonus performance-based vesting terms described below. Accordingly, on April 14, 2023, the Company granted the Consultant a stock option for the purchase of 180,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$1.72 per share, which was the closing price of the common stock on Nasdaq on the date immediately preceding the date of grant, and which vests and becomes exercisable upon certification of attainment of the applicable targets by the board of directors or the Compensation Committee in accordance with the equity bonus terms described below.

Each fiscal year during the term of the A&R Audibert Consulting Agreement, the Consultant will also be granted fully-vested common stock upon, and in an amount based on, the board of directors' or the Compensation Committee's certification of attainment of the applicable targets in accordance with the equity bonus terms described below.

All equity bonuses will be awarded under the Plan. To the extent that equity bonuses of grants of fully-vested common stock under the A&R Audibert Consulting Agreement are designated Performance Compensation Awards by the board of directors or the Compensation Committee and to the extent that each fiscal year constitutes a Performance Period, pursuant to the Plan, such awards must be granted as soon as administratively practicable following completion of the certification of the attainment of the performance-based conditions for such awards but in no event later than 2 1/2 months following the end during which the respective Performance Period is completed. Otherwise, such grants will be considered Performance Shares and will be granted when certified by the board of directors or the Compensation Committee.

Two of the equity bonuses will consist of the vesting of a percentage of the restricted stock granted each year under the A&R Audibert Consulting Agreement based on the percentage of the annual sales target that is certified as attained, the percentage of the net profit target that is certified as attained, or both. The restricted stock will vest based on the certification of attainment of the annual sales target as follows: (a) vesting of 5% of the restricted stock if 95% of the annual sales target is certified as attained; (b) 20% of the restricted stock if 100% of the annual sales target is certified as attained; or (d) 40% of the restricted stock if 120% of the annual sales target is certified as attained. The restricted stock will also vest based on the certified attainment of the annual net profit target as follows: (a) vesting of 7.5% of the restricted stock if 95% of the annual net profit target is certified as attained; (c) 45% of the restricted stock if 110% of the annual net profit target is certified as attained; or (d) 60% of the restricted stock if 120% of the annual net profit target is certified as attained; or (d) 60% of the restricted stock if 120% of the annual net profit target is certified as attained.

Two of the other equity bonuses will consist of the grant of fully-vested shares of common stock and the vesting of a portion of the stock option granted each year under the A&R Audibert Consulting Agreement, and two of the other equity bonuses will consist of the vesting of a portion of such stock option only, in each case based on whether each bonus's designated target or target percentage is certified as attained, as follows: (1) grant of 8,000 shares and vesting of the stock option as to 40,000 shares if the annual sales target is certified as attained; (2) grant of 12,000 shares and vesting of the stock option as to 50,000 shares if 125% of the annual net profit target is certified as attained; (3) vesting of the stock option as to 50,000 shares if 125% of the annual net profit target is certified as attained.

Under the A&R Audibert Consulting Agreement, the Consultant will also be eligible for additional bonus amounts as determined by the board of directors within its sole discretion. The Consultant will provide services under the A&R Audibert Consulting Agreement as an independent contractor. The Consultant and Mr. Audibert will not receive employee or executive benefits. The Consultant and Mr. Audibert will be solely responsible for any business-related expenses. The A&R Audibert Consulting Agreement does not provide for directors and officers indemnification or insurance to Mr. Audibert. However, due to Mr. Audibert's position as an executive officer, the Company will provide indemnification and advancement of expenses to Mr. Audibert with respect to certain legal proceedings to the fullest extent not prohibited by the Nevada Revised Statutes or any other applicable law as directed by the Company's Amended and Restated Bylaws, subject to the limitations and exceptions provided therein. Likewise, Mr. Audibert is automatically covered by the Company's directors and officers insurance policy as an executive officer.

Upon the occurrence of a Change in Control (as defined by the A&R Audibert Consulting Agreement) during the A&R Audibert Consulting Agreement's term, whether or not the Consultant's engagement is terminated, or upon the Consultant's termination without cause, all restricted stock, stock option, stock appreciation right or similar awards granted to or pending grant to and held by the Consultant will immediately vest and will no longer be subject to forfeiture, unless expressly provided otherwise in the governing documents for such awards. Either the Company or the Consultant may terminate the Agreement for material breach and failure to cure such breach within 15 days of receipt of notice by the non-breaching party. Both the Company and the Consultant may terminate the A&R Audibert Consulting Agreement without cause by giving at least 30 days' written notice. Termination under any provision of the Agreement will generally result in the Company's obligation to provide accrued and unpaid or pending cash, equity or other compensation. If the Company or the Consultant terminates the agreement without cause as provided under the agreement, and the Consultant and Mr. Audibert then deliver their signatures to the general release and waiver form annexed to the consulting agreement within 60 days, then the Company must pay a \$50,000 fee.

The Consultant and Mr. Audibert are also subject to general confidentiality and non-interference provisions under the consulting agreement and general non-competition and non-solicitation provisions in the Consultant's stock option agreement and restricted stock award agreement.

The foregoing description of the A&R Audibert Consulting Agreement is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the agreement, a copy of which was filed with the April 2023 Form 8-K as Exhibit 10.2.

#### Other Audibert Compensation

As previously reported in the April 2023 Form 8-K, immediately prior to the entry into the A&R Audibert Consulting Agreement, on April 14, 2023, pursuant to the original Consulting Agreement among the Company, the Consultant and Mr. Audibert, dated as of December 2, 2021 (the "Original Audibert Consulting Agreement"), the Company granted a total of 40,000 shares of common stock subject to time-based service requirements that had vested in two 20,000-share portions on May 2, 2022 and December 2, 2022, respectively. The Consultant had separately informally agreed to receive these grants in 2023 in order to accommodate the Company. The grant was made under the Plan on the standard form of restricted stock award agreement.

The foregoing description is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Original Audibert Consulting Agreement, a copy of which was filed with the April 2023 Form 8-K as Exhibit 10.3.

#### Johnshoy Compensation

As initially reported in a Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 16, 2022 and as further reported in the April 2023 Form 8-K with respect to related recent developments, the Company and Sheila Johnshoy, Chief Operating Officer, are parties to an employment letter agreement, dated as of March 11, 2022 (the "Johnshoy Agreement"). Under the Johnshoy Agreement, Ms. Johnshoy will receive an annual base salary of \$250,000 and potential salary and annual bonus increases in future years based on the successful achievement of personal and business-related goals. Ms. Johnshoy will also receive an annual performance cash bonus with a target bonus percentage of 25%, 50%, 75%, or 100% of base salary, conditioned on (i) the occurrence of annual revenue of the Company of \$10 million, \$53 million, \$60 million, or \$70 million, respectively, provided that the Company also has normalized annual operating profit for any annual cash bonus of 50%, 75% or 100% of base salary, or (ii) the discretionary approval of the Company's Chief Executive Officer, subject to approval by the Compensation Committee. In accordance with the Johnshoy Agreement, Ms. Johnshoy received a cash bonus consisting of 50% of base salary earned during 2022, or \$100,000, due to the occurrence of annual revenue of more than \$53 million and normalized annual operating profit during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022.

In addition, under the Johnshoy Agreement, on March 11, 2022, Ms. Johnshoy was granted 5,000 shares of common stock and a stock option to purchase 40,000 shares at an exercise price per share of \$1.60, which was the closing price of the Company's common stock on March 11, 2022. The stock option was immediately vested as to 5,000 shares of common stock and otherwise subject to a six-month lock-up provision and certain performance-based vesting conditions described as follows. Upon the occurrence of the following annual revenue amounts of the Company or at the discretionary approval of the Company's Chief Executive Officer, subject in each case to final approval by the Compensation Committee, Ms. Johnshoy will be granted up to 35,000 additional shares of common stock and the stock option will vest as to 35,000 shares of common stock, as follows: (a) grant of 5,000 shares and the vesting of the stock option as to 5,000 shares upon attainment of annual revenue of \$50 million, (b) grant of 10,000 shares and the vesting of the stock option as to 10,000 shares upon attainment of annual revenue of \$60 million, (c) grant of 10,000 shares and the vesting of the stock option as to 10,000 shares upon attainment of annual revenue of \$80 million. On April 14, 2023, the Compensation Committee certified the attainment of the performance-based conditions for the grant of 5,000 shares of common stock and the vesting of the stock option as to 5,000 shares of common stock and the vesting of the stock option as to 5,000 shares of common stock and the vesting of the stock option as to 5,000 shares of common stock and the vesting of the stock option as to 5,000 shares of common stock and the vesting of the stock option as to 5,000 shares of common stock and the vesting of the stock option as to 5,000 shares of common stock and the vesting of the stock option as to 5,000 shares of common stock and the vesting of the stock option as to 5,000 shares of common stock and the vesting of the stock option as to 5,000 shares of common stock a

Additionally, under the Johnshoy Agreement, if a trailing 12-month revenue of the Company of \$250 million occurs within 3.5 years of Ms. Johnshoy's start of employment, she will earn an additional bonus of 100,000 shares of common stock. All equity compensation under the Johnshoy Agreement has been and will be made under standard forms of award agreements under the Plan unless otherwise disclosed. After the first year of employment, all bonus compensation terms will be subject to review.

In addition, Ms. Johnshoy is entitled to severance benefits equal to four months' salary if terminated without Cause (as defined in the Johnshoy Agreement) during the first year of employment and four months' salary if terminated during the second year of employment. Ms. Johnshoy will be eligible to receive certain health care, dental, life insurance, disability, and retirement benefits after three months' employment. Ms. Johnshoy will receive unlimited vacation days encompassing vacation, personal and sick days, subject to two weeks' notice and approval whenever possible.

The Johnshoy Agreement does not provide for directors and officers indemnification or insurance to Ms. Johnshoy. However, due to Ms. Johnshoy's position as an executive officer, the Company will provide indemnification and advancement of expenses to Ms. Johnshoy with respect to certain legal proceedings to the fullest extent not prohibited by the Nevada Revised Statutes or any other applicable law as directed by the Company's Amended and Restated Bylaws, subject to the limitations and exceptions provided therein. Likewise, Ms. Johnshoy is automatically covered by the Company's directors and officers insurance policy as an executive officer.

The Johnshoy Agreement and Ms. Johnshoy's equity award agreements have general non-solicitation provisions but do not have non-competition provisions. Ms. Johnshoy is also subject to a standard non-disclosure requirement under the Johnshoy Agreement.

The foregoing description of the Johnshoy Agreement is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the agreement, a copy of which is filed with the April 2023 Form 8-K as Exhibit 10.4.

#### Paradiso Compensation

As initially reported in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021 filed with the SEC on March 16, 2022 and as further reported in the April 2023 Form 8-K with respect to related recent developments, the Company and Stephen Paradiso, Chief of Staff, are parties to an employment letter agreement, dated as of December 6, 2021 (the "Paradiso Agreement"). Under the Paradiso Agreement, Mr. Paradiso will receive an annual base salary of \$175,000 and potential salary and annual bonus increases in future years based on the successful achievement of personal and business-related goals.

For each of the first two years of the term of the Paradiso Agreement, Mr. Paradiso will receive an annual performance cash bonus based on the review of the Company's results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 and the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, respectively, with a target bonus percentage of 25%, 50%, 75%, or 100% of base salary, conditioned on (i) for fiscal year 2022, the occurrence of trailing 12-month revenue of the Company of \$42 million, \$47 million, \$52 million, or \$57 million, respectively, and, for fiscal year 2023, the occurrence of trailing 12-month revenue of the Company of \$45 million, \$55 million, or \$75 million, respectively, or (ii) the discretionary approval of the Company's Chief Executive Officer, subject to approval by the Compensation Committee. In accordance with the Paradiso Agreement, Mr. Paradiso received a cash bonus consisting of 100% of base salary, or \$175,000, due to the occurrence of trailing 12-month revenue of more than \$57 million during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022.

In addition, pursuant to the Paradiso Agreement, on December 6, 2021, Mr. Paradiso was granted a bonus of 65,000 restricted shares and an option to purchase up to 125,000 shares at an exercise price per share of \$4.72, which was the closing price of the common stock on the date that the Paradiso Agreement was countersigned by Mr. Paradiso. The restricted stock and 65,000 shares under the option will vest in eight equal installments over two years and were subject to a six-month lockup provision. Mr. Paradiso will be granted up to 40,000 bonus shares of common stock and the option will vest as to an aggregate of 40,000 additional shares of common stock upon the occurrence of trailing 12-month revenue amounts, as follows: (i) grant of 10,000 shares and vesting of the stock option as to 10,000 shares any trailing 12-month revenue of \$50 million; (ii) grant of 10,000 shares and vesting of the stock option as to 10,000 shares any trailing 12-month revenue of \$60 million; (iii) grant of 10,000 shares and vesting of the stock option as to 10,000 shares any trailing 12-month revenue of \$70 million; and (iv) grant of 10,000 shares and vesting of the stock option as to 10,000 shares any trailing 12-month revenue of \$80 million. Mr. Paradiso will also be granted up to an aggregate of 22,500 bonus shares of common stock and the stock option will vest as to an aggregate of 22,500 shares of common stock once certain service-based benchmarks are achieved, as follows: (i) grant of 2,500 shares and vesting of the stock option as to 2,500 shares upon successfully executing a company "rhythm" by setting recurring meetings and tasks; (ii) grant of 10,000 shares and vesting of the stock option as to 10,000 shares upon successfully hiring and onboarding three chief officer-level or executive vice president-level leaders; and (iii) grant of 10,000 shares and vesting of the stock option as to 10,000 shares upon successfully creating and putting in motion a business plan and succession plan. On April 14, 2023, the Compensation Committee certified the attainment of the conditions for the grant of 12,500 shares of common stock and the vesting of the stock option as to 12,500 shares of common stock based on trailing 12-month revenue of more than \$50 million during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 and Mr. Paradiso's successfully executing a company "rhythm" by setting recurring meetings and tasks. Additionally, under the Paradiso Agreement, if trailing 12-month revenue of the Company of \$250 million occurs within three years of Mr. Paradiso's start of employment, he will be granted an additional 100,000 bonus shares of common stock. After the second year of employment, all bonus compensation terms will be subject to review. All equity compensation under the Paradiso Agreement has been and will be made under standard forms of award agreements under the Plan unless otherwise disclosed.

Mr. Paradiso has been eligible to receive certain health care, dental, life insurance, disability, and retirement benefits since the end of his first three months' employment. Mr. Paradiso will receive 25 days of paid time off annually, including vacation and sick days, subject to two weeks' notice and approval whenever possible.

The Paradiso Agreement does not provide for directors and officers indemnification or insurance to Mr. Paradiso. However, due to Mr. Paradiso's position as an executive officer, the Company will provide indemnification and advancement of expenses to Mr. Paradiso with respect to certain legal proceedings to the fullest extent not prohibited by the Nevada Revised Statutes or any other applicable law as directed by the Company's Amended and Restated Bylaws, subject to the limitations and exceptions provided therein. Likewise, Mr. Paradiso is automatically covered by the Company's directors and officers insurance policy as an executive officer.

Mr. Paradiso is required to sign a standard nondisclosure and noncompete agreement that will not restrict Mr. Paradiso from working within the print or promotional industry, except for any specific direct competitors that are individually listed in that agreement, but Mr. Paradiso will be required not to solicit any current or existing clients or customers that were obtained prior to Mr. Paradiso's employment or obtained during his employment unless given prior approval by the Company for the period specified in the noncompete agreement. Due to Mr. Paradiso's voluntary execution of the equity award agreements described above, however, Mr. Paradiso is subject to their general noncompetition provisions as well as their general non-solicitation provisions. Mr. Paradiso is also subject to a standard non-disclosure requirement under the Paradiso Agreement.

The foregoing description of the Paradiso Agreement is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the agreement, a copy of which is filed with the April 2023 Form 8-K as Exhibit 10.5.

#### **Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic**

The current global pandemic of a novel strain of coronavirus, or COVID-19, and the global measures taken to combat it, have had, and may in the future continue to have, an adverse effect on our business. Public health authorities and governments at local, national and international levels have announced various measures to respond to the pandemic. Some measures that directly or indirectly impact our business include voluntary or mandatory quarantines, restrictions on travel and limiting gatherings of people in public places.

We believe that the COVID-19 pandemic has impacted Stran's operational and financial performance and will likely continue to do so. As was typical for other firms in the promotional products industry, from March 2020 through the end of the first quarter of 2023, we believe that our revenues were adversely affected by the economic impact of the pandemic, including decreased demand for promotional products and services such as ours due to a lack of in-person events, businesses not being fully reopened and staffed, and customers' decreased marketing budgets. We also experienced higher costs of supplies of product materials due to continued increases in expenses, especially higher freight charges and raw material costs, and a more challenging supply chain from issues such as trucking shortages and port congestion. Much of the increase in costs, supply chain disruption, and other continuing disruptions in operations is believed to be due to ongoing outbreaks of COVID-19. We expect some or all of these effects to continue in 2023.

We have also noted that some of our customers have indicated that a greater number of their employees work from home than in past periods. We believe this increase may be partially a result of the relatively new risk to office work from the COVID-19 pandemic, and that this trend may continue. As a result, we have been, and expect to continue to, drop-ship more materials directly to people at their homes than in periods before the advent of the COVID-19 pandemic. We expect that this trend will continue to yield increased freight service fees and fulfillment revenue as well as associated costs.

We have responded to the challenges resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic by developing a clear company-wide strategy and sticking to our hardworking culture and core value of delivering creative merchandise solutions that effectively promote our customers' brands. We continue to focus on our core group of customers while providing additional value-added services, including our e-commerce platform for order processing, warehousing and fulfillment functions, and propose alternative product offerings based on their unique needs. We also continue to solicit and market ourselves to long-term prospects that have shown interest in Stran. We have remained committed to providing our customers with more than just products. Below are some of the specific ways we have responded to the current pandemic:

- Adhered to all state and federal social distancing requirements while prioritizing health and safety for our employees. We allow team members to work remotely when
  necessary, allowing us to continue providing uninterrupted sales and service to our customers throughout the year.
- Emphasized and established cost savings initiatives, cost control processes, and cash conservation to preserve liquidity.
- Explored national acquisition opportunities and executed the acquisitions of the promotional products assets and business of Indiana-based Wildman Imprints promotional products business division of Wildman Business Group, LLC, or Wildman Imprints, with historical revenue exceeding \$10 million annually in September 2020, Massachusetts-based G.A.P. Promotions with 2021 revenue of approximately \$7.2 million in January 2022, Texas-based Trend Brand Solutions with annualized 2022 revenue of approximately \$3 million in August 2022, and New York-based Premier NYC with annualized 2022 revenue of approximately \$2 million in December 2022. Additionally, we entered into a definitive agreement in January 2023 to purchase the promotional products business and assets of Massachusetts-based T R Miller Co., Inc., or TRM Corp., with historical revenue of approximately \$19 million.
- Retained key customers through constant communication, making proactive product or program suggestions, driving program efficiencies, and delivering value-added solutions to help them market themselves more effectively.
- Concentrated and succeeded in earning business from clients in specific verticals that have spent more during the pandemic including customers in the entertainment, beverage, retail, consumer packaged goods, and cannabis industries.
- Retained key employees by continuing to provide them with competitive compensation and the tools required to be successful in their jobs.
- Successfully applied for and received PPP loans and government assistance.
- Refocused our marketing activities on more client-specific revenue generating activities that reduced spend while remaining effective.

We believe that we have seen encouraging signs of recovery from the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic. There has been a significant increase in the amount of requests for proposal and other customer inquiries since the beginning of 2021, which leads us to believe that companies are preparing to spend at previous or increased levels. We expect going forward that pent-up demand from more widespread immunity to the COVID-19 virus and societal reopening will help compensate for lower sales in prior periods. However, significant lingering supply chain issues related to the COVID-19 pandemic continued to adversely affect our business in 2021 and 2022, and may continue to do so in 2023.

We believe that we have fully complied with all state and local requirements relating to COVID-19. As described above, we have undertaken various measures in an effort to mitigate the spread of COVID-19, including encouraging employees to work remotely if possible. We have also enacted business continuity plans, which may make maintaining our normal level of corporate operations, quality controls and internal controls difficult. Moreover, the COVID-19 pandemic may cause temporary or long-term disruptions in our supply chains and/or delays in the delivery of our inventory. Further, the COVID-19 pandemic and mitigation efforts may also adversely affect our customers' financial condition, resulting in reduced spending for the products we sell.

As events are rapidly changing, we do not know how long the COVID-19 pandemic and the measures that have been introduced to respond to it will disrupt our operations or the full extent of that disruption. Further, once we are able to restart normal business hours and operations doing so may take time and will involve costs and uncertainty. We also cannot predict how long the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic and the efforts to contain it could continue to impact our business after the pandemic is under control. Governments could take additional restrictive measures to combat the pandemic that could further impact our business or the economy in the geographies in which we operate. We believe it is also possible that the impact of the pandemic and response on our suppliers, customers and markets will persist for some time after governments ease their restrictions. These measures have negatively impacted, and may continue to impact, our business and financial condition as the responses to control COVID-19 continue.

The extent to which the pandemic may continue to impact our results will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted as of the date of this report, including new information that may emerge concerning the severity of the pandemic and steps taken to contain the pandemic or treat its impact, among others. Nevertheless, the pandemic and the current financial, economic and capital markets environment, and future developments in the global supply chain and other areas present material uncertainty and risk with respect to our performance, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

For further discussion, see Item 1A. "Risk Factors – Risks Related to Our Business and Industry – Our business has been materially adversely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic and could be materially adversely impacted by future COVID-19 pandemic surges, new COVID-19 variants, or other pandemics." in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022.

#### **Emerging Growth Company**

We qualify as an "emerging growth company" under the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the "JOBS Act"). As a result, we are permitted to, and intend to, rely on exemptions from certain disclosure requirements. For so long as we are an emerging growth company, we will not be required to:

- have an auditor report on our internal controls over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act;
- comply with any requirement that may be adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding mandatory audit firm rotation or a supplement to the auditor's report providing additional information about the audit and the financial statements (i.e., an auditor discussion and analysis);
- submit certain executive compensation matters to stockholder advisory votes, such as "say-on-pay" and "say-on-frequency;" and
- disclose certain executive compensation related items such as the correlation between executive compensation and performance and comparisons of the chief executive officer's compensation to median employee compensation.

In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also provides that an emerging growth company can take advantage of the extended transition period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), for complying with new or revised accounting standards. In other words, an emerging growth company can delay the adoption of certain accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies. We have elected to take advantage of the benefits of this extended transition period. Our financial statements may therefore not be comparable to those of companies that comply with such new or revised accounting standards.

We will remain an emerging growth company until the earliest of (i) the last day of the fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of our initial public offering, (ii) the last day of the first fiscal year in which our total annual gross revenues are \$1,235,000,000 or more, (ii) the date that we become a "large accelerated filer" as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), which would occur if the market value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds \$700 million as of the last business day of our most recently completed second fiscal quarter or (iv) the date on which we have issued more than \$1 billion in non-convertible debt during the preceding three year period.

#### **Principal Factors Affecting Our Financial Performance**

Our operating results are primarily affected by the following factors:

- our ability to acquire new customers or retain existing customers;
- our ability to offer competitive product pricing;
- our ability to broaden product offerings;
- industry demand and competition;
- our ability to leverage technology and use and develop efficient processes;
- our ability to attract and retain talented employees; and
- market conditions and our market position.

#### **Results of Operations**

#### Comparison of Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 and 2022

Consolidated Operations Data	Three Mont	Three Months Ended		
-	March 31, 2023	March 31, 2022		
Sales	\$ 15,776,247	\$ 12,259,583		
Cost of Sales:				
Purchases	10,023,546	7,956,616		
Freight	1,058,748	1,084,802		
Total Cost of Sales	1,1082,294	9,041,418		
Gross Profit	4,693,953	3,218,165		
Operating Expenses:				
General and Administrative Expenses	6,079,095	4,024,218		
Total Operating Expenses	6,079,095	4,024,218		
Earnings (Loss) from Operations	(1,385,142)	(806,053)		
Other Income and (Expense):				
Other Income (Expense)	56,637	(3,680)		
Interest Income (Expense)	138,082	90,595		
Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments	131,885	(3,731)		
Total Other Income and (Expense)	326,604	83,184		
Earnings (Loss) Before Income Taxes	(1,058,538)	(722,869)		
Provision for Income Taxes	(364,000)	(177,055)		
Net Earnings (Loss)	(694,538)	(545,814)		
3	1			

#### Sales

Sales consist primarily of the selling price of the merchandise, service or outbound shipping and handling charges, less discounts, coupons redeemed, returns and credits.

Our sales increased 28.7% to approximately \$15.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023 from approximately \$12.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2022. The increase was primarily due to higher spending from existing clients as well as business from new customers. Additionally, the acquisitions of the G.A.P. Promotions assets in January 2022, the Trend Brand Solutions assets in August 2022, and the Premier NYC assets in December 2022 accounted for an aggregate of approximately \$2.4 million, or 15.1%, of sales, for the first quarter of 2023, compared to approximately \$0.9 million for the first quarter of 2022, as described in more detail immediately below.

The January 2022 acquisition of the G.A.P. Promotions assets generated approximately \$1.2 million of sales for the three months ended March 31, 2023, compared to approximately \$0.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2022. The August 2022 acquisition of the Trend Brand Solutions assets generated approximately \$1.0 million of sales for the three months ended March 31, 2023, compared to no sales from such assets for the three months ended March 31, 2022. The December 2022 acquisition of the Premier NYC assets generated approximately \$0.2 million of sales for the three months ended March 31, 2023, compared to no sales from such assets for the three months ended March 31, 2022. Our recurring organic sales, defined as sales excluding revenue from the G.A.P Promotions, Trend Brand Solutions and Premier NYC asset acquisitions, increased 17.7%, or approximately \$2.0 million, to approximately \$13.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023, compared to approximately \$11.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2022.

#### Cost of Sales

Cost of sales consists of the costs of purchasing inventory and freight charges. Our total cost of sales increased 22.6% to approximately \$1.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023, from approximately \$9.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2022. As a percentage of sales, cost of sales decreased to 70.2% for the three months ended March 31, 2023 from 73.7% for the three months ended March 31, 2022. More specifically, cost of purchases increased to approximately \$1.0 million the three months ended March 31, 2023, or 26.0%, from approximately \$8.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2022. As a percentage of sales, cost of purchases decreased to 63.5% for the three months ended March 31, 2023, from 64.9% for the three months ended March 31, 2022. In addition, freight costs decreased to approximately \$1.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023, or (2.4)%, from approximately \$1.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2022. As a percentage of sales, freight costs decreased to 6.7% for the three months ended March 31, 2023, from 8.8% for the three months ended March 31, 2022. The increase in the dollar amount of cost of purchases was primarily due to an increase in sales of 28.7% from period to period and decrease in the dollar amount of freight was primarily due to improved supply chains and lower freight rates from period to period to period.

#### Gross Profit

Gross profit consists of sales less total costs of sales. Our gross profit increased 45.9% to approximately \$4.7 million, or 29.8% of revenue, for the three months ended March 31, 2023, from approximately \$3.2 million, or 26.3% of revenue, for the three months ended March 31, 2022. The increase in the dollar amount of gross profit was due to increased sales for the reasons described above, partially offset by an increase in purchasing costs for the reasons described above.

#### Operating Expenses

Operating expenses consist of general and administrative expenses. Our operating expenses increased 51.1%, or approximately \$2.1 million, to approximately \$6.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023 from approximately \$4.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2022. As a percentage of sales, operating expenses increased to 38.5% for the three months ended March 31, 2023 from 32.8% for the three months ended March 31, 2022. The increase in the dollar amount of operating expenses was due to an increase in general and administrative expenses of approximately \$2.1, or 51.1%, which in turn was primarily due to additional expenses related to the acquisition of the G.A.P. Promotions assets, the Trend Brand Solutions assets, and the Premier NYC assets; due diligence relating to the asset purchase agreement for the acquisition of TRM Corp.'s assets; the implementation of an internal commercial ERP system on NetSuite ERP's platform; ongoing public company expenses; lead generation initiatives; and organic growth in our business.

#### Other Income and (Expense)

Other income and (expense) consist of other income (expense), interest income (expense), and unrealized gain (loss) on investments. Our other income (expense) was \$56,637 for the three months ended March 31, 2023, compared to other income (expense) of \$(3,680) for the three months ended March 31, 2022. This change was primarily due to an accrual adjustment to certain earn-out obligations relating to our acquisition of the assets of Wildman Imprints. Our interest income (expense) was \$138,082 for the three months ended March 31, 2023, compared to \$90,595 for the three months ended March 31, 2022. This change was primarily due to interest generated from investments. Our unrealized gain (loss) on investments was \$131,885 for the three months ended March 31, 2023, compared to \$(3,731) for the three months ended March 31, 2022. This change was primarily due to the recording of all investments at estimated fair value.

#### Provision for Income Taxes

Income tax provision reflects statutory tax rates in the jurisdictions in which we operate adjusted for permanent book/tax differences.

Income tax provision for the three months ended March 31, 2023 was approximately \$0.4 million compared to income tax provision of approximately \$0.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2022. Income tax provision for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 accounted for approximately 34.4% and 24.5% of earnings (loss) before income taxes of approximately \$(1.1) million and approximately \$(0.7) million for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. For the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company recorded an income tax provision comprised substantially of a deferred tax asset in the form of an operating loss carryforward. No valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset was accounted for due to the indefinite life of the asset.

Our effective tax rate is directly affected by the relative proportions of revenue and income before taxes in the jurisdictions in which we operate. Based on management's expectations of future earnings, we anticipate that our effective tax rate will remain similar to the federal tax rate of 21%. State income taxes will fluctuate based annually on apportionment of sales by state.

Discrete tax events may cause our effective rate to fluctuate on a quarterly basis. Certain events, including, for example, acquisitions and other business changes, which are difficult to predict, may also cause our effective tax rate to fluctuate. We are subject to changing tax laws, regulations, and interpretations in multiple jurisdictions. Corporate tax reform continues to be a priority in the U.S. and other jurisdictions. Additional changes to the tax system in the U.S. could have significant effects, positive and negative, on our effective tax rate and our deferred tax assets and liabilities. For further discussion of changes in the income tax provision, refer to Notes A and S to our financial statements beginning on page 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

#### Net Earnings (Loss)

Our net loss for the three months ended March 31, 2023 was approximately \$0.7 million, compared to a net loss of approximately \$0.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2022. This change was primarily due to increased expenses relating to an increase in lead generation initiatives, integration expenses related to the acquisition of the G.A.P. Promotions assets, the Trend Brand Solutions assets, and the Premier NYC assets; due diligence relating to the asset purchase agreement for the acquisition of TRM Corp.'s assets; the implementation of an internal commercial ERP system on NetSuite ERP's platform; ongoing expenses related to being a public company; and higher cost of purchases in the three months ended March 31, 2023. These factors were partially offset by the increase in sales during the three months ended March 31, 2023 to approximately \$1.2 million, \$1.0 million, and \$0.2 million, respectively, from approximately \$0.9 million, none, and none, respectively, during the three months ended March 31, 2022, from the acquisition of the G.A.P. Promotions assets, the Trend Brand Solutions assets, and the Premier NYC assets, respectively, and the increase of approximately \$2.0 million from recurring organic sales during the three months ended March 31, 2023 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2022.

#### **Liquidity and Capital Resources**

As of March 31, 2023, we had cash and cash equivalents of approximately \$10.6 million and investments of approximately \$10.3 million. We have financed our operations primarily through cash generated from our initial public offering in November 2021, private placement in December 2021, operations, and bank borrowings, including a secured revolving demand line of credit that was opened with Salem Five Cents Savings Bank in November 2021 for aggregate loans of up to \$7.0 million, subject to a number of asset-related and other financial requirements and other covenants, terms and conditions as described in detail below under "—Debt".

We believe that our current levels of cash will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs for our operations and cash payment obligations for both the 12 months ended March 31, 2024 and in the long-term beyond this period, including our anticipated costs associated with being a public reporting company. We may, however, in the future require additional cash resources due to changing business conditions, implementation of our strategy to expand our business, or other investments or acquisitions we may decide to pursue. If our own financial resources are insufficient to satisfy our capital requirements, we may seek to sell additional equity or debt securities or obtain additional credit facilities. The sale of additional equity securities could result in dilution to our stockholders. The incurrence of indebtedness would result in increased debt service obligations and could require us to agree to operating and financial covenants that would restrict our operations. Financing may not be available in amounts or on terms acceptable to us, if at all. Any failure by us to raise additional funds on terms favorable to us, or at all, could limit our ability to expand our business operations and could harm our overall business prospects.

#### Summary of Cash Flow

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

The following table provides detailed information about our net cash flow for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022.

March 31, 2022 2023 Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (3,592,439)7,098,744 Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (680,821)(627,914)Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (383,901)1,307,362 Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (4,657,161)7,778,192 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 15,253,756 32,226,668

Three Months Ended

40,004,860

10,596,595

Net cash used in operating activities was approximately \$3.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023, as compared to net cash provided by operating activities of approximately \$7.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2022. For the three months ended March 31, 2023, decreases in accounts receivable, inventory, accounts payable, and rewards program liability as well as an increase in unearned revenue were the primary drivers of the net cash used in operating activities. For the three months ended March 31, 2022, increases in accounts receivable, inventory, unearned revenue, and rewards program liability along with a decrease in accounts payable were the primary drivers of the net cash provided by operating activities. The increase in net cash used in operating activities for the three months ended March 31, 2023 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2022 occurred in the normal course of business due to growth in organic business as well as a decrease in rewards program liability.

Net cash used in investing activities was approximately \$0.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023, as compared to net cash used in investing activities of approximately \$0.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2022. For the three months ended March 31, 2023, purchases of investments and additions to software-related property and equipment were the primary drivers of the net cash used in investing activities. For the three months ended March 31, 2022, additions to intangible assets related to customer lists and additions to software-related property and equipment were the primary drivers of the net cash used in investing activities. The increase in net cash used in investing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2022 was primarily due to purchases of investments and additions to software-related property and equipment.

Net cash used in financing activities was approximately \$0.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023, as compared to net cash provided by financing activities of approximately \$1.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2022. For the three months ended March 31, 2023, net cash used in financing activities consisted primarily of payments related to a contingent earn-out liability. For the three months ended March 31, 2022, net cash provided by financing activities consisted primarily of net proceeds received from the exercise of our publicly-traded warrants. The change to net cash used in financing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2022 was primarily due to payments related to a contingent earn-out liability and the absence of proceeds from the exercise of our publicly-traded warrants during the three months ended March 31, 2023.

#### Stock Repurchase Program

As initially announced on February 23, 2022, under our stock repurchase program, we may repurchase up to \$10 million of our outstanding shares of common stock from time to time in the open market, in accordance with all applicable securities laws and regulations, including Rule 10b-18. Our decision to repurchase our shares, as well as the timing of such repurchases, will depend on a variety of factors that include ongoing assessments of our capital needs, market conditions and the price of our common stock, and other corporate considerations, as determined by management. Repurchases will also only be made in accordance with the Company's insider trading policy. Our insider trading policy generally permits insider purchases of our stock only during the period beginning on the second business day following the day of public release of our quarterly or annual earnings and ending on the last day of the then-current quarter. There is no defined number of shares to be repurchased over a specified timeframe through the life of the stock repurchase program. The repurchase authorization has no expiration date but may be suspended or discontinued at any time. It is expected that stock repurchases will be paid using existing and future cash generated by operations.

On May 23, 2022, we announced that we had established the Trading Plan with B. Riley intended to qualify under Rule 10b-18. The Trading Plan instructs B. Riley to repurchase shares of common stock for our account in accordance with Rule 10b-18 and our instructions. Repurchases under the Trading Plan are scheduled to terminate as late as May 2023.

For the three months ended March 31, 2023, we were unable to repurchase shares under the Trading Plan in accordance with the restrictions of the Company's insider trading policy that would have applied if such purchases had been made by a person covered by the policy.

As of March 31, 2023, \$6,667,595 remained available under the stock repurchase program for future stock repurchases.

#### Debt

On November 22, 2021, we entered into a Revolving Demand Line of Credit Loan Agreement (the "Loan Agreement"), with Salem Five Cents Savings Bank (the "Lender"), for aggregate loans of up to \$7 million (the "Loan" or "Line of Credit"), evidenced by a Revolving Demand Line of Credit Note, also dated November 22, 2021 (the "Note"). The Line of Credit and Note are secured by a first priority security interest in all assets and property of the Company, as provided in the Security Agreement, also dated November 22, 2021, between the Lender and the Borrower (the "Security Agreement" and together with the Loan Agreement and the Note, the "Loan Documents"), and as described below.

The amount available under the Line of Credit is the lesser of \$7.0 million or the sum of (x) eighty percent (80%) of the then-outstanding amount of Eligible Accounts (as defined below), plus (y) fifty percent (50%) of Eligible Inventory (as defined below); minus one hundred (100%) percent of the aggregate amount then drawn under the Line of Credit for the account of the Company. In addition, advances based upon Eligible Inventory must be capped at all times at \$2,000,000. "Eligible Accounts" are defined as accounts that meet a number of requirements, including, unless otherwise approved by the Lender, being less than ninety (90) days from the date of invoice not subject to any prior assignment, claim, lien, or security interest, not subject to set-off, credit, allowance or adjustment by the account debtor, arose in the ordinary course of the Company's business, not an intercompany obligation, not subject to notice of bankruptcy or insolvency of the account debtor, not owed by an account debtor whose principal place of business is outside the United States, not a government account, not be evidenced by promissory notes, and not one of the accounts owed by an account debtor 25% or more of whose accounts are 90 or more days past invoice date; or otherwise not deemed acceptable by the Lender in accounts owed by an account debtor 25% or more of whose accounts are 90 or more days past invoice date; or otherwise not deemed acceptable by the Lender in accounts owed by an account debtor 25% or more of whose accounts are 90 or more days past invoice date; or otherwise not deemed acceptable by the Lender in accounts owed by an account debtor 25% or more of whose accounts are 90 or more days past invoice date; or otherwise not deemed acceptable by the Company. It does not include any inventory which on consignment or not otherwise owned by the Company; any inventory which has been returned by a customer or is damaged or subject to any legal encumbrances other than a first priority security interest held by the Company; an

The Loan is subject to interest at the prime rate plus 0.5% per annum. The Company must repay interest on Loan proceeds on a monthly basis. The Loan will continue indefinitely, subject to the Lender's demand rights and the Company's ongoing affirmative and other obligations under the Loan Documents, as summarized below.

The Company may freely draw upon the Loan subject to the Lender's right to demand complete repayment of the Loan at any time. Late payments are subject to a late payment charge of 5%. In the event of failure to repay the loan after the Lender makes demand for full repayment, the interest rate will increase by 10%. The Note may be prepaid at any time without penalty. The Lender may assign the Note without the Company's consent.

Under the Security Agreement and the other Loan Documents, the Company granted the Lender a first priority security interest in all of its assets, including both assets owned as of the date of the Loan and afterwards, as collateral for full repayment of the Loan. The Lender may file Uniform Commercial Code financing statements with any jurisdiction and with sufficient descriptions of the property to perfect its security interest in all of the Company's current and future assets. Upon default of the Loan, the Lender may accelerate repayment of the Loan, take possession of the Company's assets, assign a receiver over the Company's assets, and enforce other rights as to the Company's assets as secured creditor. The Company must pay for all of the Lender's reasonable legal fees and expenses incurred to enforce its rights under the Loan Documents.

Under the Loan Agreement, the Company is required to continue its current business of outsourced marketing solutions, and, without the prior consent of the Lender, the Company may not acquire in whole or in part any other company or business and shall not engage in any other business or open any other locations. The Company must use the proceeds of the Loan only in connection with the general and ordinary operations of its business and for the following purpose: general working capital for accounts receivable and inventory purchases.

The Loan is also subject to ongoing affirmative obligations of the Company, including: Making punctual repayment of the Loan amount; maintaining proper accounting books and records in accordance with the opinion of LMHS, P.C. or another Certified Public Accountant acceptable to the Lender; allowing the Lender to inspect its accounting books and records; furnishing audited, quarterly, monthly and other financial statements to the Lender; making payment of Lender's reasonable expenses for a field exam in 2022; allowing the Lender to communicate with its accountants; maintaining its properties in good repair subject to ordinary wear and tear; obtaining replacement-cost insurance for its property with the Lender as Mortgagee/Loss Payee; causing management contracts for the Company's properties to be subordinated to the rights of the Lender; and allowing no change of property management company without the prior written consent of the Lender.

The Loan is further subject to the following financial requirements: (a) Debt Service Coverage Ratio: Cash flow to be calculated on an annual basis of at least 1.20 times EBITDA less cash taxes, distributions, dividends, shareholder withdrawals in any form, and unfinanced CAPEX divided by all scheduled principal payments on all debt plus cash interest payments made on all debt; and (b) Minimum Net Worth thresholds: The Company will be required to meet the following minimum net worth thresholds: \$2,000,000 at December 31, 2021, which the Company met; \$2,750,000 at December 31, 2022; and \$3,500,000 at December 31, 2023.

The Company also may not incur any additional indebtedness, secured or unsecured, except in the ordinary course of business; make loans or advances to others or guarantee others' obligations except for certain ordinary advances to employees or ordinary customer credit terms; make investments; acquire any business; make capital expenditures except in the ordinary course of business; sell any material assets except in the ordinary course of business; or grant any security interests or mortgages in its properties or assets.

The foregoing summary of the Loan Agreement, the Note, and the Security Agreement is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Loan Agreement, the Note, and the Security Agreement, copies of which are attached as Exhibits 10.1, 10.2 and 10.3 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 26, 2021.

In connection with the Loan Agreement, on November 22, 2021, the Company, the Lender and Harte Hanks Response Management/ Boston, Inc. (the "Warehouse Provider"), the lessor of certain warehouse facilities to the Company, executed a Warehouseman's Waiver in favor of the Lender (the "Warehouseman's Waiver"). Under the Warehouseman's Waiver, the Warehouse Provider disclaimed any interest in the property of the Company stored on the premises (the "Collateral"), and agreed not to interfere with the Lender's enforcement of its rights in the Collateral. The Warehouse Provider further agreed to provide notice to the Lender of any default by the Company of its obligations as to the Warehouse Provider, and to give the Lender at least 30 days to exercise its rights, which period may be extended by the Lender up to 60 days upon its payment of the per-diem rental amount. After that period, unless the default has been cured by the Lender, the Warehouse Provider may dispose of such Collateral as it deems fit. Upon the receipt of written notice from the Lender and until such notice is rescinded, the Warehouse Provider shall only honor instructions from the Lender with respect to the Collateral, including, any direction from the Lender to dispose of all or any portion of the Collateral at any time, without any further consent or instruction from Company.

The foregoing summary of the Warehouseman's Waiver is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Warehouseman's Waiver, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit 10.4 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 26, 2021.

As of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, we had not drawn any funds from the Loan under the Loan Agreement.

## **Contractual Obligations**

#### Wildman Imprints Assets Acquisition

On August 24, 2020, we entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement, or the WBG Asset Purchase Agreement, to acquire inventory, fixed assets, and a customer list of Wildman Imprints. The acquisition closed on September 26, 2020. In connection with the asset acquisition, the customer list was purchased using a contingent earn-out calculation. The purchase price is equal to 15% of the gross profit earned from the sale of product to the customer list for year 1 and 30% for years 2 and 3. Payments are due on the anniversary date of the purchase. At March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the current portion of the earn-out liability amounted to \$502,603 and \$742,874, respectively. The foregoing description of the WBG Asset Purchase Agreement is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the WBG Asset Purchase Agreement, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit 10.1 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022.

In connection with the asset acquisition, we also had an amount due to the seller under a note in the amount of \$162,358 as of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 for the inventory and property and equipment purchased. This amount accrues no interest, and is to be paid "as used" on a quarterly basis through the three-year earn-out period. The Company anticipates that the note will be paid in full in 2023, accordingly the note payable has been classified as current on the balance sheet as of March 31, 2023. We expect no deficiencies in our ability to make the payments required under the asset purchase agreement. The aggregate purchase price was \$2,937,222, as follows:

Fair Value of Identifiable Assets Acquired:

Inventory	\$ 649,433
Property and Equipment	34,099
Intangible - Customer List	2,253,690
Total	\$ 2,937,222
Consideration Paid:	
Cash	521,174
Note Payable - Wildman	162,358
Contingent Earn-Out Liability	2,253,690
Total	\$ 2,937,222

For further discussion see Notes J, M and N to our financial statements beginning on page 1 of this Quarterly Report.

## G.A.P. Promotions Assets Acquisition

On January 31, 2022, the Company closed on an asset purchase agreement, dated as of January 21, 2022, as amended on January 31, 2022, to acquire inventory, working capital, and a customer list from G.A.P. Promotions, or the G.A.P. Promotions Asset Purchase Agreement. In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification 805, "Business Combinations" ("FASB ASC 805"), the acquisition method of accounting has been applied and recognition of the assets acquired has been determined at fair value as of the acquisition date. All acquisition costs have been expensed as incurred. The consideration paid has been allocated to the assets acquired based on their estimated fair values at the acquisition date. The estimate of fair values for tangible assets acquired was agreed to by both buyer and seller. The aggregate purchase price was \$3,245,872.

Fair Value of Identifiable Assets Acquired:

Inventory	\$ 91,096
Working Capital	879,486
Intangible - Customer List	2,275,290
Total	\$ 3,245,872
Consideration Paid:	
Cash	1,510,872
Restricted Stock	100,000
Contingent Earn-Out Liability	 1,635,000
Total	\$ 3,245,872

For further discussion relating to this transaction, see Notes J and N to our financial statements beginning on page 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, Item 1.01 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 26, 2022, and Items 1.01 and 2.01 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 1, 2022. The foregoing description of the G.A.P. Promotions Asset Purchase Agreement and assets acquired from G.A.P. Promotions is qualified in its entirety by the full text of the asset purchase agreement and amendment thereto, which are filed as Exhibit 2.1 and Exhibit 2.2 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, respectively.

#### Trend Brand Solutions Assets Acquisition

On August 31, 2022, the Company closed on an asset purchase agreement, dated as of July 13, 2022, as amended on August 31, 2022, to acquire cash, accounts receivable, inventory, fixed assets, and a customer list from Trend Brand Solutions, or the Trend Asset Purchase Agreement. In accordance with FASB ASC 805, the acquisition method of accounting has been applied and recognition of the assets acquired has been determined at fair value as of the acquisition date. All acquisition costs have been expensed as incurred. The consideration paid has been allocated to the assets acquired based on their estimated fair values at the acquisition date. The estimate of fair values for tangible assets acquired was agreed to by both buyer and seller. The aggregate purchase price was \$2,193,166.

Fair Value of Identifiable Assets Acquired:

Cash	\$ 63,624
Accounts Receivable	346,822
Inventory	108,445
Fixed Assets	14,444
Intangible – Customer List	1,659,831
Total	\$ 2,193,166
Consideration Paid:	
Cash	\$ 1,488
Assumption of Liabilities	721,334
Restricted Stock	100,000
Contingent Earn-Out Liability	1,370,344
Total	2 193 166

For further discussion see Notes J and N to our financial statements beginning on page 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, Item 1.01 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 19, 2022, and Items 1.01 and 2.01 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 7, 2022. The foregoing description of the Trend Asset Purchase Agreement and assets acquired from Trend Brand Solutions is qualified in their entirety by the full text of the asset purchase agreement and amendment thereto, which are filed as Exhibit 2.3 and Exhibit 2.4 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, respectively.

#### Premier NYC Assets Acquisition

On December 20, 2022, the Company closed on an asset purchase agreement, dated as of November 29, 2022, or the Premier NYC Asset Purchase Agreement, to acquire cash, accounts receivable, and a customer list from Premier NYC. In accordance with FASB ASC 805, the acquisition method of accounting has been applied and recognition of the assets acquired has been determined at fair value as of the acquisition date. All acquisition costs have been expensed as incurred. The consideration paid has been allocated to the assets acquired based on their estimated fair values at the acquisition date. The estimate of fair values for tangible assets acquired was agreed to by both buyer and seller. The aggregate purchase price was \$1,390,533.

Fair Value of Identifiable Assets Acquired:

	_	
Cash	\$	13,855
Restricted Stock		344,078
Contingent Earn-Out Liability		1,032,600
Total	\$	1,390,533
Consideration Paid:		
Cash	\$	440,025
Assumption of Liabilities		17,908
Restricted Stock		25,000
Contingent Earn-Out Liability		907,600
Total	\$	1,390,533

For further discussion see Notes J and N to our financial statements beginning on page 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

#### TRM Corp. Asset Acquisition Agreement

On January 25, 2023, we entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement (the "TRM Corp. Agreement") with TRM Corp. and Thomas R. Miller ("TRM"), pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire substantially all of the assets of TRM Corp. used in TRM Corp.'s branding, marketing and promotional products and services business (the "TRM Corp. Business"). The TRM Corp. Business has existing operations and has generated revenues.

Under the TRM Corp. Agreement, the aggregate purchase price ("TRM Corp. Purchase Price") for the TRM Corp. Business will consist of cash payments by the Company to TRM Corp. at and following Closing (as defined below), subject to adjustments, as described below.

At the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the TRM Corp. Agreement (the "TRM Corp. Closing"), the Company will pay TRM Corp. the following cash components of the TRM Corp. Purchase Price: (a) \$1,000,000 in cash, subject to a customary working capital adjustment, an adjustment for any indebtedness of TRM Corp. or the TRM Corp. Business as of the date and time of the TRM Corp. Closing (the "TRM Corp. Closing Date") that is not part of the Assumed Liabilities (as defined in the TRM Corp. Agreement), and the TRM Corp. Earn Out Payments (as defined below); (b) the amount paid by TRM Corp. (cost) for Inventory (as defined in the TRM Corp. Agreement) that is on hand and owned by Seller as of the TRM Corp. Closing Date; (c) installment payments equal to (i) \$400,000 on the first anniversary of the TRM Corp. Closing Date, (iii) \$200,000 on the fourth anniversary of the TRM Corp. Closing Date, each such installment payment subject to adjustment for certain uncollected accounts receivable amounts outstanding after the first 12 months following the TRM Corp. Closing; and (d) four annual earn-out payments (the "TRM Corp. Earn Out Payments"), each equal to (i) 45% of annual Gross Profit (as defined in the TRM Corp. Agreement) of TRM Corp. above \$4,000,000 with respect to certain customers of TRM Corp. or primarily resulting from the past or future efforts of the Company that are assigned to and primary responsibility of any employee or independent contractor of TRM Corp. as designated by the TRM Corp. Agreement, for the trailing 12-month period, as of the first, second, third, and fourth anniversary of the TRM Corp. Closing Date, subject to procedures as to any disagreement regarding the TRM Corp. Earn Out Payments, as set forth in the TRM Corp. Agreement.

The timing and manner of the determination of the TRM Corp. Purchase Price, working capital adjustments, and the TRM Corp. Earn Out Payments, and the resolution of any disagreements as to such adjustments or payments, will follow the procedures prescribed by the TRM Corp. Agreement.

In addition, as of the TRM Corp. Closing Date, the Company will undertake to perform or otherwise pay, satisfy and discharge as of the TRM Corp. Closing the Assumed Liabilities (as defined in the TRM Corp. Agreement).

During the period between the date of the TRM Corp. Agreement and the TRM Corp. Closing, TRM Corp. and TRM will be required to carry on the TRM Corp. Business in the ordinary course and provide the Company with reasonable access to the TRM Corp. Business's books, records, sales representatives and support staff. In addition, TRM Corp. and TRM agreed to terminate and not engage in any discussions or transactions with any party other than the Company with respect to any acquisition of a material portion of TRM Corp.'s assets or equity interests. From the date of the TRM Corp. Agreement until the earlier of the TRM Corp. Closing or the termination of the TRM Corp. Agreement, the Company and TRM Corp. will give each other notice of certain events, or lack thereof, which could have certain adverse effects.

The TRM Corp. Agreement contains customary representations, warranties, and covenants, including a covenant that TRM Corp. and TRM will not compete with the TRM Corp. Business in the United States, or solicit any customer, supplier or affiliate of the Company, during the period that the Company employs TRM and the following two years.

The TRM Corp. Agreement also contains mutual indemnification provisions with respect to breaches of representations and warranties as well as to certain third-party claims, and indemnification by the Company of TRM Corp. and TRM with respect to certain damages with respect to the Assumed Liabilities (as defined in the TRM Corp. Agreement) and certain other liabilities asserted by a third party arising after the TRM Corp. Closing. In the case of indemnification provided with respect to breaches of certain non-fundamental representations and warranties, the indemnifying party will only become liable for indemnified losses to the extent that the amount exceeds an aggregate threshold of \$25,000. However, this threshold limitation will not apply to claims by the Company for breaches by TRM Corp. or TRM of certain fundamental representations and warranties. In addition, the Company's aggregate remedy with respect to any and all indemnifiable losses may in no event exceed (i) with respect to claims related to breach of certain fundamental representations, the Final Purchase Price (as defined in the TRM Corp. Agreement) or (ii) with respect to all other claims, 50% of the Final Purchase Price.

In addition to customary indemnification procedural and reimbursement provisions for matters involving third parties, the TRM Corp. Agreement provides that the Company will have the option of recouping all or any part of any indemnified amount by notifying TRM that the Company is reducing the Installment Payments or the TRM Corp. Earn Out Payments by the amount of such indemnified amounts.

The representations and warranties under the TRM Corp. Agreement of TRM Corp. and TRM, and the indemnification rights of the Company with respect to such representations and warranties, will survive the TRM Corp. Closing for 18 months after the TRM Corp. Closing, except that certain fundamental representations and warranties of TRM Corp. and TRM will continue in effect for a period equal to the applicable statute of limitations. The representations and warranties of the Company, and the indemnification rights of TRM Corp. and TRM with respect to such representations and warranties, will continue in effect for a period equal to the applicable statute of limitations.

The TRM Corp. Closing is subject to customary closing conditions, including the completion of the Company's due diligence; the receipt of any required consents of any third parties or governmental agencies; the release of any applicable security interests by TRM Corp.; completion of a financial audit of TRM Corp.; delivery of disclosure schedules; execution of a lease agreement with base rent of \$179,550.00 in the first year of the lease and an increase of 2% per annum in each subsequent year. In addition, the Company must have entered into (i) an employment agreement with Stacy Miller upon mutually agreeable terms and (ii) a consulting agreement with TRM upon mutually agreeable terms pursuant to which TRM will provide certain consulting services to the Buyer for a period of three years following the TRM Corp. Closing Date. TRM Corp. and TRM must also change the name of TRM Corp. to a name that is distinct and dissimilar from, and unlikely to be confused with, "T R Miller" within ten business days after the TRM Corp. Closing Date.

The TRM Corp. Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the TRM Corp. Closing by (i) mutual agreement of the parties; (ii) by any of the parties if there has been a material misrepresentation or breach of covenant or agreement contained in the TRM Corp. Agreement on the part of the other and such breach of a covenant or agreement has not been promptly cured after at least 14 days' written notice is given; (iii) by the Company if any of TRM Corp. or TRM's closing conditions set forth in the TRM Corp. Agreement have not been satisfied before May 25, 2023 (the "Outside Date"); or (iv) by TRM Corp. or TRM if any of the Company's closing conditions set forth in the TRM Corp. Agreement have not been satisfied before the Outside Date. The Company may also terminate the TRM Corp. Agreement if the Company objects to any information contained in any disclosure schedules or updates to the disclosure schedules or the contents of any accompanying documents within 30 days of delivery of such schedules or within five days of delivery of any updates to such schedules, and the Company and TRM Corp. cannot agree on mutually satisfactory modifications to them.

The foregoing description of the TRM Corp. Agreement is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of such document which is filed as Exhibit 2.1 to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

#### **Property Leases**

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments:

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027	\$	320,197
2024		322,491 133,054
2025		133,054
2026		-
2027		-
	\$	775,742

Rent expense for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 totaled \$104,687 and \$105,502, respectively. We anticipate no deficiencies in our ability to make these payments.

## Other Cash Obligations

The Company manages reward card programs for clients. Under these programs, the Company receives cash and simultaneously records a liability for the total amount received. These accounts are adjusted on a periodic basis as reward cards are funded or reduced at the direction of the customers. At March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company had net deposits totaling zero and \$6,000,000, respectively.

Our other principal cash payment obligations have consisted principally of obligations under the loans described above. As stated above, as of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, we had not drawn any funds from the Loan under the Loan Agreement.

## **Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements**

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

## **Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates**

We prepare our financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States ("GAAP"). The preparation of financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, costs and expenses, and related disclosures. We evaluate our estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ significantly from the estimates made by our management. To the extent that there are differences between our estimates and actual results, our future financial statements presentation, financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows will be affected.

We believe that the assumptions and estimates associated with investments, inventory valuation, intangible assets, revenue recognition, stock-based compensation expense and income taxes have the greatest potential impact on our financial statements. Therefore, we consider these to be our critical accounting policies and estimates. For further information on all of our significant accounting policies, see Notes A.3. through A.21. to our financial statements beginning on page 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

#### Investments

Our investments consist of U.S. treasury bills, corporate bonds, and money market funds. We classify our investments as available-for-sale and record these investments at fair value. Investments with an original maturity of greater than three months at the date of purchase and less than one year from the date of the balance sheet are classified as current and those with maturities of more than one year from the date of the balance sheet are classified as long-term in the consolidated balance sheet.

## Inventory Valuation

Inventory consists of finished goods (branded products) and goods in process (un-branded products awaiting decoration). All inventory is stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market value.

#### Intangible Assets - Customer List

The Company accounts for intangible assets under the provision of ASC 350-20 "Accounting for Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." The provision establishes standards for valuation and amortization of unidentifiable assets.

Under ASC 350-20-35-1, the cost of unidentifiable intangible assets is measured by the excess cost over the fair value of net assets acquired. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives shall not be amortized until its useful life is determined to be no longer infinite. The intangible assets are evaluated when a triggering event occurs, at least annually, for potential impairment.

## Revenue Recognition

In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers ("ASC 606"), we recognize revenues when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration that is expected to be received for those goods or services. The guidance defines a five-step process to achieve this core principle and, in doing so, judgment and estimates may be required within the revenue recognition process including identifying performance obligations in the contract, estimating the amount of variable consideration to include in the transaction price and allocating the transaction price to each separate performance obligation. Generally, we recognize revenue when there is persuasive evidence that an arrangement exists, title and risk of loss have passed, delivery has occurred or the services have been rendered, the sales price is fixed or determinable and collection of the related receivable is reasonably assured. Title and risk of loss generally pass to our customers upon shipment. In limited circumstances where either title or risk of loss pass upon destination or acceptance or when collection is not reasonably assured, we defer revenue recognition until such events occur.

We input orders based upon receipt of a customer purchase order, confirm pricing through the customer purchase order, validate credit worthiness through past payment history or other financial data and record revenue upon shipment of goods and when risk of loss and title transfer.

#### Stock-Based Compensation

We account for stock-based compensation under ASC Topic 718, Compensation-Stock Compensation, which requires us to record related compensation costs in the statement of operations. Calculating the fair value of stock-based compensation awards requires the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected life of the awards and expected volatility of our stock price. Expected volatility is a statistical measure of the amount by which a stock price is expected to fluctuate during a period. Our estimates of expected volatilities are based on weighted historical implied volatility. The expected forfeiture rate applied in calculating stock-based compensation cost is estimated using historical data and is updated annually.

The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of stock-based awards involve estimates that require management judgment. If factors change and we use different assumptions, our stock-based compensation expense could change significantly in the future. In addition, if our actual forfeiture rate is different from our estimate, our stock-based compensation expense could change significantly in the future.

#### Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using the asset and liability method in accordance with ASC Topic 740, *Income Taxes*, which requires recognition of deferred tax liabilities and assets for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns. Under this method, we must make estimates and judgments in determining the provision for taxes for financial statement purposes. These estimates and judgments occur in the calculation of tax credits, benefits, and deductions, and in the calculation of certain tax assets and liabilities that arise from differences in the timing of recognition of revenue and expense for tax and financial statement purposes, as well as the interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions. In addition, the Company operates within multiple tax jurisdictions and is subject to audit in these jurisdictions. Significant changes in these estimates may result in an increase or decrease to our tax provision in a subsequent period. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

We assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income and to the extent we believe that recovery is not determinable beyond a "more likely than not" standard.

The calculation of our tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex tax regulations. We recognize liabilities for uncertain tax positions based on a two-step process. The first step is to evaluate the tax position for recognition by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates that it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation processes, if any. If we determine that a tax position will more likely than not fail to be sustained on audit, the second step requires us to estimate and measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement. It is inherently difficult and subjective to estimate such amounts, as we have to determine the probability of various hypothetical outcomes. We re-evaluate these uncertain tax positions on a quarterly basis. This evaluation is based on factors such as changes in facts or circumstances, changes in tax law, new audit activity, and effectively settled issues. Determining whether an uncertain tax position is effectively settled requires judgment. Such a change in recognition or measurement would result in the recognition of a tax benefit or an additional charge to the tax provision in the period in which a change in judgment occurs.

#### **Recent Accounting Pronouncements**

For a discussion of recently adopted accounting pronouncements, see *Recent Accounting Pronouncements* in Note A.22. to our financial statements beginning on page 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

## ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Not applicable.

#### ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

## **Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures**

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act). Disclosure controls and procedures refer to controls and other procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act, such as this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

As required by Rule 13a-15(e) of the Exchange Act, our management has carried out an evaluation, with the participation and under the supervision of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as of March 31, 2023. Based upon, and as of the date of this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer determined that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in applicable rules and forms and is accumulated and communicated to management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

## **Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting**

We regularly review our system of internal control over financial reporting and make changes to our processes and systems to improve controls and increase efficiency, while ensuring that we maintain an effective internal control environment. Changes may include such activities as implementing new, more efficient systems, consolidating activities, and migrating processes.

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the three months ended March 31, 2023 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

# PART II OTHER INFORMATION

#### ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

From time to time, we may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of business. However, litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties, and an adverse result in these, or other matters, may arise from time to time that may harm our business. We are not currently aware of any such legal proceedings or claims that we believe will have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or operating results.

## ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

Not applicable.

## ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS.

#### Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

During the three months ended March 31, 2023, we did not sell any equity securities that were not registered under the Securities Act and that were not previously disclosed under Item 3.02 in a Current Report on Form 8-K.

## Purchases of Equity Securities

No repurchases of our common stock were made during the three months ended March 31, 2023. For a description of the Company's stock repurchase program, see "Part I. Financial Information – Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. – Liquidity and Capital Resources – Stock Repurchase Program".

#### ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES.

None.

## ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable.

#### ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION.

We have no information to disclose that was required to be disclosed in a Current Report on Form 8-K during the three months ended March 31, 2023 but was not reported. There have been no material changes to the procedures by which security holders may recommend nominees to our board of directors where those changes were implemented after the Company last provided disclosure of such procedures.

# ITEM 6. EXHIBITS.

Exhibit No.	Description
2.1	Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 25, 2023, by and among Stran & Company, Inc., T R Miller Co., Inc. and Thomas R. Miller (incorporated by
	reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 31, 2023)
3.1	Articles of Incorporation of Stran & Company, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on October 7,
	<u>2021)</u>
3.2	Amended and Restated Bylaws of Stran & Company, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Amendment No.1 to Registration Statement on
	Form S-1 filed on October 22, 2021)
31.1*	Certifications of Principal Executive Officer filed pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2*	Certifications of Principal Financial and Accounting Officer filed pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1**	Certifications of Principal Executive Officer furnished pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2**	Certifications of Principal Financial and Accounting Officer furnished pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS*	Inline XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH*	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL*	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF*	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB*	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE*	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
104*	Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

<sup>\*</sup> Filed herewith

<sup>\*\*</sup> Furnished herewith

## **SIGNATURES**

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: May 15, 2023 STRAN & COMPANY, INC.

/s/ Andrew Shape

Name: Andrew Shape
Title: Chief Executive Officer and President

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ David Browner

Name: David Browner Title: Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)

#### CERTIFICATIONS

## I, Andrew Shape, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Stran & Company, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
  - a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
    information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
    which this report is being prepared;
  - b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
  - c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
  - d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
  - a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
  - b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 15, 2023

/s/ Andrew Shape

Andrew Shape
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

#### CERTIFICATIONS

## I, David Browner, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Stran & Company, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
  - a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
    information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
    which this report is being prepared;
  - b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
  - c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
  - d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
  - a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
  - b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 15, 2023

/s/ David Browner

David Browner
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

## CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned Chief Executive Officer of STRAN & COMPANY, INC. (the "Company"), DOES HEREBY CERTIFY that:

- 1. The Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 (the "Report"), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- 2. Information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the Company.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this statement on May 15, 2023.

/s/ Andrew Shape
Andrew Shape
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Stran & Company, Inc. and will be retained by Stran & Company, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

The forgoing certification is being furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. It is not being filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company, whether made before or after the date hereof, regardless of any general incorporation language in such filing.

## CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned Chief Financial Officer of STRAN & COMPANY, INC. (the "Company"), DOES HEREBY CERTIFY that:

- 1. The Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 (the "Report"), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- 2. Information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the Company.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this statement on May 15, 2023.

/s/ David Browner
David Browner
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Stran & Company, Inc. and will be retained by Stran & Company, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

The forgoing certification is being furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. It is not being filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company, whether made before or after the date hereof, regardless of any general incorporation language in such filing.